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Highlights of the Year 2010

2010 FEREA

March

The Group’s CDMA mobile handset
design solutions has been awarded
the “2009 CDMA Terminal Most
Innovative Handset Design Award”
by China Telecom, becoming
the only mobile handset design
company to receive this award;

The Shenyang Phase 1 production
line has passed the testing
phase and has officially started
production and operation. It
is mainly responsible for the
production and assembly of the
communication modules for the
internet of things and some of the
smart phones, with a production
capacity of 600K/month;

June

The Group’s EVDO products have
won the China Telecom EVDO
PCBA tender, becoming one of the
two companies winning the tender;

Shipment of the Company’s smart
phones with Android operating
system has started;

The “New generation mobile
communication terminal expansion
and technological transformation
project” of the Company’s
subsidiary Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom was approved jointly
by the National Development
and Reform Commission and
the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology to
be included as a central key
technological transformation
project;

July

The Group’s subsidiary Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom was named
the “Shanghai Patent Activity
Exemplary Enterprises”;
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September

The Group’s module products
SIM900 and SIM900OB have
passed the certification of AT&T of
the US, creating the possibilities for
our module customer’s products to
enter the US market;

October

Construction of the main building
of the Shenyang Phase 2 plant
was completed. The plant has an
area of 31,000m?, and is mainly
used for full handset production
machineries such as injection
molding, spray painting and
vacuum plating, etc;

The Group’s subsidiary Shanghai
Simcom was awarded Connected
World’s global “Most innovative
internet of things and connection
equipment supplier”, and was
elected “One of the top 100
enterprises of CW”;

December

The Group’s subsidiary Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom was awarded the
China Telecom “2010 Best CDMA
terminal design company award”;

The Group’s subsidiary Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom was awarded the
2010 Key New Hi-Tech Enterprise
of the State’s Torch Plan.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWwE

Looking back to the first half of 2009, SIM Technology Group Limited
(“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) experienced its most
difficult period in its history. With the efforts of all staff, we managed a
“V-shape” rebound in the second half of 2009. However, the impacts
caused by the financial crisis were not finally resolved until 2010. In 2010,
as our high value and high growth market strategy has been successfully
implemented, our operating results for the year have continued the
growth trend since the second half of 2009.

In 2010, the Group nourished the partnership with and delivered over 20
projects to several international branded companies. This represented
our highest business segment growth in 2010. More importantly, the
Group has significantly enhanced its full handsets delivery capability and
strengthened our capability to service our international key customers.

We also accomplished satisfactory results in other business segments.
In the international and domestic open handset markets, we achieved
record unit shipment in both full handsets (ODM) and mother boards.
In the module business, we successfully transitioned to a new chipset
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Chairman’s Statement
FRRE

platform while maintaining the second place position in the global
market share. We strived to take the first place in next two years. In the
domestic 3G market, all our three 3G standard solutions were utilised by
our branded customers in their products. Especially for EVDO standard,
in January 2011, we received the award of the “Best COMA Terminal
Designer of the Year” from Mr Wang Xiaochu, the president of China
Telecom.

In the second half of 2010, the Group was determined not to emphasise
on low or negative margin business just for the purpose of gaining
market share in handset shipment. We prioritised our resource to provide
high-end solutions to our branded customers. We have devoted more
resources in developing Android base solutions. In the first half of 2010,
we have only one R&D team for developing Android base solutions while
in the second half of 2010, four other R&D teams also have entered
into the Android base solutions regime. As our branded customers
greatly demand for Android base solutions, we believe that Android base
solutions business will grow rapidly and may become a major contributor
in turnover and profit of the Group in the future years.
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Chairman’s Statement
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In the aspects of customer base and market positioning, we targeted at
exploring new business opportunities from large international customers.
As part of the Group’s ODM market expansion strategies, in the second
half of 2010, the Group further expanded its reach to partner with another
large Japanese customer and successfully secured two contracts for
providing communication solutions for the Japanese market. The first
project was commenced in January 2011 and the second one will be
commenced in the first quarter of 2011 and shipments are targeted
in the second half of 2011. In addition, several new projects are now
under negotiation. With the experience we gained from the Japanese and
Korean clients of providing handset solutions for the PRC market, the
partnership with this new Japanese customer is a break through for the
Group in entering the Japanese market to service the most demanding
operators. Further, two new tier one customer partnerships are also
under discussion. The Group will continue to execute its ODM expansion
strategies in order to achieve sustainable and healthy business growth.

In anticipating the possible labour shortage along the coastal areas, we
began to explore expanding to other low costs locations three years ago.
The Group had finally selected its northern region operations centre
in Shenyang. After one year of construction in Shenyang, the northern
production base has been established and has been fully responsible for
the manufacturing of wireless modules since the second half of 2010. We
are currently in the second phase of the site expansion, a full handsets
production line including state of art injection mold and spray painting
machineries is targeted to commence production in the second half of
2011. In summary, the Group successfully executed the high value and
high growth strategy in 2010.

In 2010, the Group strategically expanded the proportion of high end
ODM business. For the handset business, we manufactured half million
of high end handset solutions to one key ODM customer. Although the
volume was less than 3% of the total handsets shipment, this order
brought in over 25% of our handsets turnover. In 2011, we begin
partnership with additional branded handset customers, the number
of high-end ODM projects and shipment volume is expected to double,
driving our business growth in the next two years.

The low-end handsets market will continue to be extremely competitive in
2011. Have we had not changed our strategy earlier and continued to go
after market shares in the low-end segment only, our Group could have
been forced into a very challenging operating environment. Fortunately,
our Group has insisted in high value and high growth strategy. Therefore
we are getting more profitable business and better opportunities than last
year. In view of the large number of high-end ODM projects, our Group
will consider expanding our resources to meet our customers’ demand.
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In respect of the wireless module business, the Group experienced a
challenging year of managing the retirement of the old (SIM 300) platform
and the introduction of the new (SIM900) platform in 2010. Nevertheless,
the Group has successfully obtained the AT&T certification in 2010 and
thus opening up the huge North American market for our future growth.
The Group targeted to acquire a double digit market share within two
years. In 2010, the Group’s wireless module strategy not only focused on
selling module to the existing base of over one thousand customers, but
also provided ODM system solutions for some of our customers to help
them to reduce their end-product cost. This ODM module solution service
may become another major growth driver of our wireless module business
in 2011 and beyond.

As the PRC government elevated “Internet of things” industry to one of
the key strategic industries to support in the 12th 5-year plan, we foresee
the government sponsored programs may drive even higher demand for
M2M wireless modules. Strategically, beside growing organically, we plan
to expand our product portfolio to include solutions at the sensor and
application levels in order to raise our product revenue and gross profit
and thus accelerating the future growth of the Group’s module business.

At the beginning of 2011, the Group established several business clusters
and formulated aggressive plans to tackle the expansion for different
markets. The management believes that there will be another phase of
rapid business growth and development of the Group in the coming years.

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (“Board”), | would like
to express my cordial appreciation to all members of the management
and the employees for their efforts and dedication throughout the year.
Finally, | would like to thank the financial institutions, shareholders and
investors for their continuous support and confidence in us.

Yeung Man Ying
Chairman

Hong Kong

3 March 2011
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Words from the President
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In 2010, our business has grown rapidly as a result of repositioning the
Company’s business strategy in second half of 2008 to focus on high
value added and high growth market segments. The Group has delivered
record revenue for the year ended 31 December 2010 at approximately
HK$4.03 billion (2009: approximately HK$2.98 billion), representing
35.21% year to year increase, which is the highest revenue ever reported
since the Group’s listing on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in
2005. Much of the growth was contributed by the continuous success in
ODM service to top tier handset customers and penetration in 3G product
segments. Besides top line growth, the successful execution of “high
value added” strategy resulted in significant increase in profit. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$233.3
million, representing an increase of 80.93% as compared to that of 2009.

Basic earnings per share for the year were HK15 cents.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0

cents per share to shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on 13 May 2011. The register of members will
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be closed from 11 May 2011 to 13 May 2011, both days inclusive, and
the proposed final dividend will be paid on or about 8 June 2011. The
payment of dividends shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders

at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Handset solutions

In 2010, the overall handset industry continued to be extremely
competitive. Especially for the low end feature phone segment, price
was often the main decision factor and margin was expected to be low.
That was why we chose to reposition the Company’s business strategy to
focus on “high value added and high growth” segments. We strived to
build a sustainable growth business through innovation and differentiate
ourselves among other handset design houses and ODM. Since then, we

had steadily executed the following actions towards our goal.

° Shifted our engineering focus towards 3G handsets and smart
phone solutions development coveringall 3G standards and
Window Mobile and Android OS

o Realigned sales team and incentive to target top tier handset
suppliers as ODM customers

o Invested in manufacturing technology to enhance our quality
control to meet and exceed top tier customers’ expectations

o Streamlined supply chain to improve flexibility and eliminate waste

In 2010, we had significant breakthrough in our ODM business (full

handset solutions) as a result of the above actions.

° Delivered 30 models for our top three international ODM customers

° Delivered 29 models for our top three domestic ODM customers

o Achieved HK$1.8 billion ODM sales, representing more than 136%
year to year increase

. ODM business contributed more than 56% of all handset sales with

only 23% of all handsetshipments
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At the same time, we had achieved growth in our traditional SKD/CKD
solutions. The SKD/CKD solutions reported HK$1.37 billion in sales,
representing more than 43% year to year increase. Our customers’ sales
growth in domestic and emerging markets were the key drivers for our
SKD/CKD solutions growth. Although the growth and margin in the SKD/
CKD solutions are less than those of full handset solutions, the SKD/
CKD volume represented more than 73% of all handset shipments and
provided significant economy of scale and purchasing power to manage

our cost.

Overall, our handset solutions achieved sales and gross profit of HK$3.17
billion and HK$344.8 million respectively, representing 72.76% and
254.48% year to year growth respectively. The gross profit margin
had also significantly improved to 10.88% as compared to 5.3% in
2009. Our business strategy to focus on “high value added and high
growth” segments had helped our handset solutions segment to achieve
sustainable top-line and bottom-line growth despite the competitive

industry environment.

Wireless modules and modems

The overall wireless module industry remained vibrant driven by
accelerated adoption of smart metering, security, remote monitoring,
telemetric, and home automation control consoles. In the past five
years, our family of SIM300 wireless module became a globally well
known industrial grade wireless module. We strived to continue building
our SIMCom® wireless module brand to stand for quality, reliability,
good service, and exceptional value in the Machine-to-Machine (M2M)
industry. In 2010, we chose to retire the old SIM300 family and introduce
the new SIM900 family. The SIM9O0O0 family is smaller, faster, and the best
value wireless module ever designed by our experience engineering team.
Therefore, much of our resources in 2010 were focused on supporting
our existing customers to convert their system design to adopt our new
wireless modules. The SIMO00 wireless module was the first of our kind to
receive the AT&T certification in July of 2010, opening up the huge North

American market for our future growth.

The modem industry remains volatile and highly competitive. We expect
the modem industry will be subject to inherent uncertainty and may have

an impact on our segment results.
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Overall, our wireless modules and modems solutions recorded HK$721.7
million and HK$134.7 million in sales and gross profit respectively,
representing 23.54% and 22.51% decline as compared to that of year
2009. The declines were driven by the drop in modem sales and the
conversion of SIM300 family to SIM90O0 family. Overall gross profit ratio
remained flat at around 18.66%. We expect our strong SIMCom® brand
and experience wireless module team will continue to grow the new
SIM900 family in the M2M industry and other applications alike. As the
PRC government elevated “Internet of things” industry to one of the
key strategic industries to support in the 12th 5-year plan, we foresee
the government sponsored programs will drive even higher demand for
M2M wireless modules and modules of other wireless standards like
blue tooth, wifi, short range RF, etc. Leveraging on SIMCom® brand and
our experience in M2M industry, we plan to expand our module product

portfolio to include other wireless standards as well.

LCD modules

LCD modules remained as a strategic component to our handset
customers. In anticipation of the strong growth of smart phones, our LCD
modules factory had focused on upgrading the facility in the second
half of 2010 to manufacture multi-touch capacitive display. We expect a
strong increase in attachment of these high end displays with our increase
in smart phone shipment in 2011. However, if the LCD modules were
part of our full handset sales, the revenue of the LCD modules would
be accounted for in the full handset sales and excluded from the LCD
module segment report to avoid double counting. Therefore, we may
expect LCD modules segment performance to stay flat or decline as our
ODM full handset business increases. In the year of 2010, LCD module
segment revenue and gross profit were HK$142.1 million and HK$12.7
million representing a decrease of 30.55% and 32.13% respectively as
compared to that of 2009.

Shenyang Operating Center

Shenyang Operating Center’s first phase construction has been
completed in 2010. SMT equipment had moved into the new factory
and started production. Currently, the Shenyang factory focuses on
making wireless modules and modems. In 2011, we plan to continue
with the second phase construction which will include a top of the line
injection molding, vacuum plating, and case painting factory, a research

and development (“R&D”) center, and an employee dormitory. The
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completion of the second phase construction will add critical skill sets
in making and delivering high end phones to our ODM customers and
further differentiate ourselves from our competitors. The new R&D center
will also allow us to tap into the vast pool of qualified engineers in the
nearby universities and build a stable base of engineers for our future
growth. As such, we are tapping into the Taiwanese equity market for
the first time by applying for the offering and listing of Taiwan Depository
Receipt (“TDR Issue”). We have obtained approvals from the Taiwan

authorities for the TDR Issue in January 2011.

Intellectual Property and Licensing

As a technology company, we are actively building our intellectual
property portfolio. As of the end of 2010, we have 1,016 patents
granted and/or in application covering various areas in communication
technology, mechanical design, and manufacturing know-how. Internally,
our engineers are strongly encouraged to think out of the box and we have
structured program to reward innovation. We believe that these patents
are testimony of our engineering innovation and essential to our business
growth. We intend to continue to develop and defend our patent portfolio

to the fullest extend as justified.

Our product is designed to meet certain communication industry
standards. As such we would be required to obtain license for using
certain technology from the respective technology owners which we
would pay royalties. As of 2010, we have already concluded licensing
agreements with several key technology partners. We intend to continue
such licensing negotiation as appropriate. Decisions to develop in-house

versus licensing are part of our on-going business practice.

Shenyang real estate project

Per our previous announcement, the Group through its subsidiary,
BB (L) AR A7 (unofficial English translation as Shenyang
SIM Real Estate Limited) (“SIM Real Estate”), acquired a parcel of land
in Shenyang City (“Land”). The Land is situated at Daoyi Development
Zone, No. 25, north to Shenbei Development Avenue, Shenbei New
District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, the PRC, with a site area of
approximately 85,141 square meters. Our intention is to develop the Land
into 400,000 square meters of commercial and residential apartment
complex and sell to the open market. In November 2010, the Group

entered into a sale and purchase agreement whereby the Group has
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BEA S

agreed to sell 40% equity interest in SIM Real Estate to it R EEFEH ERTPBEMERZE T ERELEF LR - BRE
EREEREE AT (unofficial English translation as Beijing Telecom PWEMFZEMB AR R ZIE T HAIEE -
Real Estate Development Corporation (“Beijing Telecom”)). Beijing At - HPIBEEL  ZEFEHEETZHHNER
Telecom has extensive experience in property development in the PRC EBRRESAEBIZOEFIERENEN - BRA
which could provide the necessary expertise to complete the project on WEHE - ZIE R 2 EEAVIHARE: - M
the Land. As such, we are confident that the project will not take away HE—HEEHEAR_E—FF=ZFTEH
our management’s attention in driving our core business growth. As at the (=

date of this report, the construction of this project was at an early stage.

We expect the first phase of the project to begin sales in the third quarter

of 2011.

Wong Hei, Simon TiE
President 1BE
Hong Kong Bk

3 March 2011 ==
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
BIEEN MO

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s revenue increased
significantly by 35.21% to a record high of HK$4,034 million (2009:
HK$2,983.5 million) as compared with that of 2009. All unit shipments of
mobile handsets, wireless communication modules and LCD modules of
the Group recorded growth in year 2010. The Group’s revenue increase
was mostly attributable to the significant increase in the sales of mobile

handset solutions.

51 %5 I B
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BEFHEELBARESBENMBROTER
BB R - NEBHRAERABS TIHRF
AR RIBE O RIFIEE
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The gross profit of the Group increased by 69.83% year-on-year to
HK$492.2 million (2009: HK$289.9 million) for the year 2010 and the
gross profit margin of the Group increased to 12.2% (2009: 9.72%).
The successful execution of “high value added” strategy resulted in
the significant increase in gross profit as well as the overall gross profit

margin.

The profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased
significantly by 80.93% to HK$233.3 million (2009: HK$129 million) in
2010 as compared with that of 2009. The basic earnings per share for
the year 2010 increased by 76.47% year-on-year to HK15 cents (2009:
HK8.5 cents).

RZZE-—ZF AEEENRFEER
69.83% & 492,200,000 jt( —= T T L F -
289,900,000/ 7T) » MAEEENER L%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Research and development expenses

In 2010, the Group continued to develop high performance products
including 3G phones, smart phones and new model of wireless modules
and modems. The number of design and development team members
was 1,134 (2009: 845) in 2010. The R&D expenses, which amounted
to HK$146.5 million (2009: HK$79.9 million), represented about 3.63%
(2009: 2.68%) of the Group's revenue.

MARFERER

RZZE—ZF  ASEBEERERMEER
BIE3CEE - BRLERE - MEGERREUE
#o —T—TFRTRFAEEBKENEE B
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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Selling and distribution costs SHER DA
The selling and distribution costs of the Group for year 2010 increased AR EEABEREREOEBSER
by 34.97% to HK$94.8 million (2009: HK$70.3 million) because of AEER_Z-—ZFHNHE R HK ARG

significant increase in local sales and export business expansion. The 5134.97% % 94,800,000/ 7L ( Z T T AL F :

ratio of the selling and distribution costs over revenue in 2010 was 2.35% 70,300,000/ 7T) e R=ZZT—FF - HERH

(2009: 2.35%). SRR AME WAL R B235% (ZETNEF -
2.35%) °

Administrative expenses THRX

The Group’s administrative expenses for 2010 increased by 19.77% to AR ZE—EFRIEETEEEERL - A
HK$108.1 million (2009: HK$90.3 million), representing 2.68% (2009: SRR T -ZEFMTRAIEMINTI%E
3.03%) of the revenue due to the expansion of operation centre in 108,100,000 7 (ZZFZ L4 : 90,300,000/
Shenyang City in 2010. TT) * 1EURA2.68% (ZZZTSF : 3.03%) °

Segment results PEEE

Mobile handset solutions BEFRBAL R 3,170.2 17,276  344.8 10.88% 18350 15362 973 5.30%

LCD modules BB RER 142.1 4,163 12.7 897% 2046 3466 188 9.18%
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Mobile handset solutions

In 2010, the revenue for mobile handset solutions increased year-on-
year by 72.76% to HK$3,170.2 million (2009: HK$1,835 million) and
unit shipments increased by 12.46% compared to 2009 and the gross
profit margin for this segment also increased to 10.88% (2009: 5.3%).
The increases were due the great achievement in the ODM sales. The
Group has launched 216 (2009: 152) handset models and 86 (2009: 52)
handset platforms in 2010.

BEFHARTT R

RZZ—FF - BE)IFHERTRRAZFIZ
IN72.76%2%3,170,200,0008 7T( = EZLF :
1,835,000,000/87C) - MEMEERR_TFT
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
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Wireless communication modules and modems

In 2010, the revenue of this segment decreased by 23.54% as compared
to that of year 2009. The decline was driven by the decrease in modem
sales and the conversion of SIM300 family to SIMO00 family. Overall gross
profit margin for modules and modems remained flat at around 18.66%
(2009: 18.41%).

LCD modules

The LCD modules remained as a strategic component to our handset
customers, the revenue growth of LCD modules was reflected in our
strong ODM business performance. And thus, we expect future external
sales of LCD modules to stay flat or decline. As a result, the external LCD
sales decreased by 30.55% as compared with those of 2009, and the
gross profit margin for this segment for 2010 was maintained at 8.97%
(2009: 9.18%).

AR BRI R BRI

RZE—ZF  ZDENBRARZZZTAER
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
At 31 December 2010, the Group had bank balances (including pledged

bank deposits) of HK$1,151.4 million (2009: HK$861.4 million), among
which 71.89% was held in Renminbi, 27.8% was held in United States
dollars (“US dollars”) and the remaining balance was held in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group intends to finance its working capital and capital

expenditure plans from such bank balances.

At 31 December 2010, the Group had bank borrowings of HK$640.3
million (2009: HK$271.1 million). The turnover period of the Group’s
inventory, trade receivables together with notes and bills receivable and
trade and notes payables were 44 days, 20 days and 52 days respectively
(2009: 47 days, 29 days and 59 days respectively) in 2010. The turnover
periods are consistent with the respective policies of the Group on credit

terms granted to customers and credit terms obtained from suppliers.
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Other than entering non-deliverable foreign exchange forward contracts BREFT TR BRAAINES LN
to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures in USD denominated bank

borrowings, the management of the Group considered that it was not

N

necessary to use any other financial instrument for hedging purpose or

adopt any particular hedging policy in 2010.

i ———

= =

FAKBEEBRABRERIMNSRTA
VST P i S BR A (5 TE SR

As at 31 December 2010, the Company had 1,569,624,500 ordinary RIZE—ZF+-A=+—H KARDET

shares of HK$0.10 each in issue.

LA o
CASH FLOW DATA HERERE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Net cash inflow from operating activities LETEBNSRAFEE 263,340 264,034

Net cash outflow from investing activities WEREIR S M F5E
(excluding pledged bank deposits) (T BEEEFRITER) (320,225) (277,919)
Net cash outflow inflow from financing activities MESZERERAFE 325,601 250,846

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND BHeRBELEEER

CASH EQUIVALENTS N EE 268,716 236,961
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The Group’s net increase in cash and cash equivalents for the year 2010
was primarily attributable to the cash inflows from operating activities,
which have been offset by the capital expenditures and the payment of

year 2009 final and year 2010 interim dividends.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2010, the total assets value of the Group was
HK$3,151.3 million (2009: HK$2,647.4 million) and the bank borrowings
amounted at HK$640.3 million (2009: HK$271.1 million). The gearing
ratio of the Group, calculated as total bank borrowings over total assets,
was 20.32% (2009: 10.24%).

EMPLOYEES
As at 31 December 2010, the Group had approximately 3,455 (2009:

2,560) employees. The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme for all its employees in Hong Kong, and
provides its PRC employees with welfare schemes as required by the
applicable laws and regulations of the PRC. The Group also offers
discretionary bonuses to its employees by reference to individual
performance and the performance of the Group. Total staff costs incurred
by the Group amounted to HK$308.8 million (2009: HK$219.1 million)
during the year 2010.
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The Board believes that the Group’s employees are among the most
valuable assets of the Group and have contributed to the success of the

Group. The Group also provides in-house training for its employees.

The emolument policies of the Group are set out on page 40 of this report.

The Company has adopted share option schemes. A summary of the
principal terms and conditions of the share option schemes are set out in

note 35 to the financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the sales of the Group are denominated in Renminbi and most
of the purchases of inventories are denominated in US dollars. With
the introduction of a more elastic exchange rate regime for Renminbi,
the Renminbi exchange rate movements might become more volatile,
creating an uncertainty effect on the Group’s business. Furthermore,
certain trade receivables, trade payables and bank balances are
denominated in US dollars, therefore exposing the Group to US dollars
currency risk. The Group entered non-deliverable foreign exchange
forward contracts to eliminate the foreign exchange exposures in USD
denominated bank borrowings. Other than that, the Group does not have
any foreign currency hedging policy but will continue to monitor any
further changes in Renminbi’s exchange rate and would proactively take
measures to minimise any adverse impact that fluctuations of exchange

rates might have on the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities.
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Development Concept of SIM Technology
SRR ERIES

LONG TERM DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

We will continue to strive to create long-term values for our customers,

shareholders and employees.

TARGETED AT MARKET LEADERS

Our target: to make the Company the leader in global wireless
communication end product solutions and services. All employees of the

Group are fully confident in, and are striving for achieving the target.

CUSTOMER ORIENTED WITH CONTINUED
INNOVATION

We are customer oriented. We attend to, in a timely manner, and continue
to satisfy customer needs, through continuous innovation in technology

and management.

BUSINESS FIDELITY AND SUSTAINABLE
OPERATION

Fidelity is the Company’s operating principle and standard, thereby we
have won confidence from investors, customers, suppliers, as well as

employees.

MAKING THE WORLD BETTER BECAUSE OF US

With “Making the world better because of us” as our corporate vision, the
Group aims to provide the world with a light of betterment through our

continuous efforts.
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Care for our Future
28 E F AR AR 2R

Support from the community is vital to corporate development, thus giving
back is undeniably our corporate responsibility. We are aware of our
limited ability, but as long as we do our best in every detail and take up
our responsibility, the world will be better because of us. —— Mr Wong
Cho Tung

Sunrise People should not only be satisfied with material wealth but
should also enrich ourselves spiritually. | wish that more Sunrise people
can share our charitable culture and carry it out so as to create a better

and more harmonious future together. —— Ms Yeung Man Ying

SUNRISE PEOPLE CHARITY FUND

An organization establishes and funds by the employees of the Group for

charity purpose.

FOCUSED ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group initiated campaigns such as the “Green in Action” and started

from every detail to contribute to environmental protection.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

SEZNSREEAER

DIRECTORS

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), aged 66, is the chairman
and executive director of the Company (“Director”) and a
director of Sunrise Electronic Industry Limited (“SEIL”). Mrs
Wong is responsible for developing strategic direction and
development of the Group. Mrs Wong together with her spouse,
Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”"), an executive Director, was
the founder of the Company. Over the years, Mrs Wong and Mr
Wong had established a number of companies which engaged
in the electronics and telecommunications business including
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Ltd. (“Shanghai Sunrise Simcom”),
one of the Group’s main operating subsidiary which was
established in November 1993. Mrs Wong has over 20 years of
operational and management experience in the electronics and
telecommunications industry. Mrs Wong lectured at the Electrical
Department of the South China University of Technology in 1977.
Mrs Wong has been a guest professor at Tongji University since
2003. Mrs Wong graduated in 1968 from the Beijing University
of Aeronautics and Astronautics, specialising in electrical
engineering. Besides being the spouse of Mr Wong, Mrs Wong
is the mother of Mr Wong Hei, Simon, the president and an
executive Director of the Company and Mr Wong Sun, a previous
non-executive Director (resigned on 31 March 2009).
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Mr Wong Hei, Simon, aged 38, is the president and an
executive Director of the Company, is responsible for overall
management and supervision of the Group’s business, ranging
from production development, marketing operation, supply
chain management to devising macro business strategies. He
is a son of Mr Wong and Mrs Wong, each an executive Director
and the younger brother of Mr Wong Sun, a previous non-
executive Director (resigned on 31 March 2009). Mr Wong
Hei, Simon has over 10 years of experience in the electronics
and telecommunications industry and extensive experience in
investment and business management. Mr Wong Hei, Simon
worked at the headquarters of National Semiconductor in the
Silicon Valley in 1995. He joined the Group in February 2000. He
obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from Boston University

in 1995, specializing in electrical engineering.
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Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”),aged 66, is an executive Director
and the president of the business operation headquarter of the
Group (the place of the Group’s business operation is located
in Shanghai, China). Mr Wong is primarily responsible for the
Group’s business operation, ranging from product development,
marketing operation, supply chain management to devising
business strategies. Mr Wong is the chairperson of Shanghai SIM
Technology Limited, a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and
SIM Technology HK Limited. Mr Wong is also the director of Info
Dynasty Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.
Mr Wong together with his spouse, Mrs Wong, an executive
Director, was the founder of the Company. Mr Wong graduated in
1968 from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics,
specializing in electrical engineering. Mr Wong has decades of
experience in the electrical, electronics and telecommunications
industry.
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Mr Zhang Jianping (“Mr Zhang”), aged 45, is an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the business
operation headquarter of the Group. He is also a director
of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom, Shanghai Simcom Limited
(“Shanghai Simcom”) and Shanghai SIM Technology Limited.
He assists the president of the Company in the overall
management of the Group. Mr Zhang joined Shanghai Sunrise
Simcom in 1996 and was responsible for the establishment
of Shanghai Simcom in 2002. Mr Zhang has over 18 years
of technology and management experience in the electronics
and telecommunication industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr
Zhang was engaged in research with No. 14 Research Institute
of the Ministry of Electronics Industry in China. Mr Zhang has
also been awarded a third class award for national technological
improvements by the State in 1990 and the first and second
class awards for technological improvements by the Ministry
of Electronics in 1989 and 1992 respectively. In 2004, he was
named as LBMEFFERIM AT (“Shanghai Outstanding
Technology Calibre”) by the Shanghai Municipal Government.
Mr Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering from
Shanghai Jiao Tong University in 1986 and a master's degree
in business administration from China Europe International
Business School in 2002.
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Ms Tang Rongrong (“Ms Tang”), aged 57, is an executive
Director, vice president of the business operation headquarter
of the Group and a director of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom and
Shanghai SIM Technology Limited. Ms Tang has nearly 20 years
of experience in human resources management, administration
and corporate operation. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, Ms
Tang was a physician of JTFEAEE/MNTE— ARER (Jiangxi
Ganzhou First People’s Hospital) and the head of technology and
deputy chief physician of EEM&TEI4F5EFT (Nanchang
Birth Planning Institute). Since then, Ms Tang has served as
the manager and deputy general manager of the personnel
and administration department of Shanghai Sunrise Simcom.
Ms Tang graduated from 2&7 52 HRIZ4L (Gannan Medical
College) in 1978.
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Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard (“Mr Chan”), aged 54, is an
executive Director and the chief finance officer of the Group. Mr
Chan qualified as a certified general accountant (CGA) in Canada
in 1988. He is a member of the Certified General Accountants
Association of Canada. Mr Chan has more than 15 years of
financial management experience and has worked as, amongst
other positions, the chief finance officer of E-Mice Solutions
(HK) Limited and Chinatron Group Holdings Limited, the
financial controller of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited and the finance director of EMI (Hong Kong) Ltd and
had also held a financial management position in Merrell Dow
Pharmaceuticals (Canada) Inc. Mr Chan obtained a bachelor’s
degree in arts from York University, Canada in 1979 and a
bachelor’s degree in administrative studies with honours from the
same university in 1982. Mr Chan joined SIM Technology (HK)
Limited in July 2004.
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Mr Liu Hing Hung (“Mr Liu"), aged 48, is an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee
of the Company. Mr Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. Mr Liu now runs a professional
accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over ten years of
experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate
finance. Mr Liu is currently an independent non-executive
director of Emperor International Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr Liu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2008.
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Mr Zhuang Xingfang (“Mr Zhuang”), aged 62, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr Zhuang is a graduate in management
engineering of Hangzhou University of Electronics Technology
Industry and obtained a master’s degree in engineering in
1996. He has acted as deputy head of Plant 877 of the Ministry
of Electronics Industry and the Economic Adjustment and
State-owned Assets Supervisory Department of the Ministry of
Electronics Industry. He is now the deputy director of the Alliance
for the Promotion of Informatisation in China. He is a senior
accountant and registered accountant (non-practising member).
Mr Zhuang was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in January 2005.
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Mr Xie Linzhen (“Mr Xie"), aged 70, graduated in 1963 from
the Peking University of Physics and is a Professor of Peking
University of Electronics. Mr Xie has acted as the deputy
director of the Telecommunication System and Equipment
Department in the Ministry of Electronics Industry, the PRC, the
deputy director of the IT Product Department in the Ministry of
Information Industry, PRC (“MII") and the standing member
of Communication Science and Technology Committee of
MII. Mr Xie is currently the vice president of China Mobile
Communication Association, the chairman of China Domestic
Handset Summit and the standing member of Communication
Science and Technology Committee of the Ministry of Industry
& Information Technology, PRC and the executive director and
chief scientist of CECT-Chinacomm Communications Co., Ltd. Mr
Xie is an independent director of Funtalk China Holdings Limited,
the securities of which are listed on NASDAQ of the United States
of America. Mr Xie is also an independent director and audit
committee member of UTStarcom, Inc., the securities of which
are listed on NASDAQ of the United States of America. Mr Xie was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director in January
2009.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Wong Tik (“Ms Wong”) CPA, aged 39, is the company
secretary and finance manager of SIM Technology (HK) Limited.
Ms Wong joined SIM Technology (HK) on 1 April 2005 and is
responsible for the financial reporting of the Group. Ms Wong
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company on 29
February 2008. Ms Wong is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over 10
years of experience in the field of accounting. Ms Wong obtained
the Honours Diploma in Accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan
College in 1995.

ABIREE(HEE]D 705 R—AR=ZF£
¥RIEFRAREYER - AL RKBEETERHT
FEESEFREFTEIBMEN BEERRFEB
AEIRK - FEGFEEREEBMNERERFERR
RHBEEEELDBERRZEBEE - HA4ER
AHERIREHAERER  PHREEFHEK
REEFFERPETIEAERCHREHREERE
BRTEERBEARARZHITESREFERZ
R HEEREEBPEIERAERAF(HBEHNE
FIERHANBE NASDAQ £ET1) 2B EF o Hi £ Th
RUTHHER QR (B FHF R EMERHEFB NASDAQ
T ZBIEERERZEGEE - HiLERT
TRNF— ARSI ABNIRITES -

EREEAE

EL+ ([Ex+ 1) (CPA)  395% * ARAIZ AT
MWERRARE (BB ERARZMBKE - 81
ITR-ZZERFNA-ANMARAB(EE) &
BEAREZHBRESEE - BXLR-_TTN\F=
AT NAREZERARB ZARWE - BEXLA
BAGIAEEERN G REARI0FKR -
FERZTR—ANLF  BEEEMC SR et as
BXR -

33




SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2010

Report of the Directors
EEFeHE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Group’s annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are set

out in the consolidated income statement on page 57.

An interim dividend of HK2.5 cents per share amounting to
HK$39,195,000 was paid to the shareholders during the year. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK3.0
cents per share to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 13 May 2011, amounting to
HK$47,089,000, and the retention of the remaining profit for the year of
HK$34,497,000.

The payment of final dividend is subject to the approval of the

shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group for the past five financial years
ended 31 December 2010 and assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 are set out on page 143 of
the annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties,
property, plant and equipment and land use rights of the Group are
set out in notes 16, 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company

are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at
31 December 2010 were approximately HK$275,432,000, being the
contributed surplus of approximately HK$193,846,000 and accumulated
profits of approximately HK$81,586,000.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying

Mr Wong Cho Tung

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Mr Zhang Jianping

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Zhuang Xingfang

Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws (“Bye-
laws”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, Mr Zhang Jianping and Ms Tang Rongrong
will retire at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Directors and

Senior Management Profile” section of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Future Ordinance (Cap 571,
Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the

Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(@) Interests in the shares of the Company and the shares of

associated corporations of the Company

EERFERITHRAEBRKRMD 2%
wmRIRR

RIZE-ZF+-_A=+—H XRAREEK
TRITHABRAR R AL AERERE 2 i
0 AR RESHEMREEE(EER
BHNBEGRPIEXVE(BEEMESILE)
(TEZLBPEERN D) R HRERERES LIE
{EPIE B2 HEN AR B AFEZELM
o SARBENE AR LR RN LT
A DIER107 BT AEEETERI SN
RSP A ([R2E5T Al ) BRI AR R R 32 P
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(@) BEXRIARGREAEERD 2#ES

Approximate
percentage of
interest in

Total number the corporation

Name of director Name of corporation Nature of interest of ordinary shares A FIRER
EEpME AR ERE EEME EERAH BABEDL
(note 3)
(Bt&E3)
Mr Wong Cho Tung Company Interest of controlled 910,000,000 57.98%
THERE ¥\ N/NE corporations (note 1)
Ry AERER (1)
Info Dynasty Group Beneficial owner 1,000 49.95%
Limited (“Info Dynasty”) EnlEEA
Ms Yeung Man Ying Company Interest of controlled 841,175,000 53.59%
D€ Lot ViN/NG] corporations (note 2)
SpEE s (fEE2)
Company Beneficial owner 320,000 0.02%
RAT] EmfEa A
Subtotal 841,495,000 53.61%
FEE
Info Dynasty Beneficial owner 1,000 49.95%

BEEAA
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Mr Wong Hei, Simon
ERERE

Info Dynasty
EmfiaA

Beneficial owner

1 0.05%

Ms Tang Rongrong Company Beneficial owner
ERbEL 2+ PN EmfiaA
Notes:
1. Mr Wong Cho Tung (“Mr Wong”) controls more than one-third of the voting

N

w

power of Info Dynasty. Mr Wong is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
841,175,000 shares held by Info Dynasty in the Company by virtue of Part XVof
the SFO. Both Intellipower Investments Limited (“Intellipower”) and Simcom
Limited (“Simcom (BVI)") are wholly-owned by Mr Wong and he is therefore
deemed to be interested in all the 48,825,000 shares and 20,000,000 shares
held by Intellipower and Simcom (BVI) in the Company by virtue of Part XV of the
SFO respectively.

Ms Yeung Man Ying (“Mrs Wong”), the spouse of Mr Wong, controls more than
one-third of the voting power of Info Dynasty. Mrs Wong is therefore deemed to
be interested in all the 841,175,000 shares held by Info Dynasty by virtue of Part
XV of the SFO.

Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued
share capital of the Company of 1,569,624,500 shares of the Company as at 31
December 2010.

186,000

0.01%

THARLAE (T4 D% Info Dynasty =5 —
A EZ R RIBFESF REERAIEXVE
MUE S A w8 B YA Info Dynasty Fris 2 8048 R
7]841,175,000 A% {7 2 #25 © B4 Intellipower
Investments Limited ([Intellipower ) & Simcom
Limited ([Simcom (BV)) )9 E L EZEHEE -
RIS R AR EHEXVE  REREAEES
Intellipower & Simcom (BVI) Fi#5 2 20 A& A 75 Bl
48,825,000 % f 20,000,000 A& i 17 2 #E 4 ©
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(b) Interests in the underlying shares of the Company (b) RAEQATHEBERDZER

Mr Zhang Jianping Company Beneficial owner 9,800,000 9,800,000 0.62%
REFALE /NG EnEAA
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard Company Beneficial owner 5,100,000 5,100,000 0.32%
BRIELRSCE NN EnEAA

Notes: PRRE -

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share 1. REARRRZZE—ZF+=_A=+—RAzZE%

capital of 1,569,624,500 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2010. TTHEZR 1,569,624,500 AR D st B ARl gD B
D e
As at 31 December 2010, save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, RZE—ZTF+-A=+—H K LXFiEE

chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests BN WEES  ARE 2 EBTRAB KK

or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the L7 BEB A TR E) sk E ({85 E [ 2 %

Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register 7 - HEARDREST - BEENREEZESFR

required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified BB 0I5 32 G A R R BT E 2 B

to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. it - SARBAEZEST BN AN A7) R AT
ZRETS AR o

SHARE OPTIONS FERR R
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of RARBRAERE 2B RIBIRE 2 FEEEE

movements in the share options are set out in note 35 to the consolidated A S RERMFESS -
financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company and the Group was

entered into or existed during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of other persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register maintained by the

Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Info Dynasty (Note 2)
(MiE2)

Notes:

1. Calculation of percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued share
capital of 1,569,624,500 shares of the Company as at 31 December 2010.

2. The relationship between Info Dynasty and Mr Wong and the relationship between
Info Dynasty and Mrs Wong is disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Position in Shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, there is no other
person (other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which are required to be recorded in the register required to be

kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent

non-executive Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the human resources department and seeks to provide remuneration
packages on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence of the

employees.

Personal interest
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The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Company will be reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to factors including the Group’s operating results, responsibilities
of the Directors and senior management and comparable market

statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are set out in

note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of the Group as set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition of
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, based on
information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company has

maintained sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 35.92% of the Group’s total sales and sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
20.25% of the Group’s total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the five largest suppliers

accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.
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At no time during the year ended 31 December 2010 did any Director,
any associate of a Director or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers

or five largest suppliers.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF BEST PRACTICES

The Company and its Directors confirm, to their best knowledge, that
except for code provision E.1.2 as mentioned below, the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer

questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2010
(“2010 AGM”), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan Tat
Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer of the
Group, chaired the 2010 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board
pursuant to the Bye-laws and was available to answer questions. Mr Wong
Cho Tung, an executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee together with Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, were also
available at the 2010 AGM to answer questions from shareholders of the

Company.
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Report of the Directors
EEGWE
COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE ErEESTH

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct for RATERMEETANEREFETEER S
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors. After specific Z5FH| e ERHARRATAEESIEL AEENR

enquiry of all Directors by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that % FBESERESEREE_ZT—ZF
they had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code T A=+ —HIEWREEETEETAZH
for the financial year ended 31 December 2010. TERLE o

AUDITOR ZEEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December HE T ZEF+_-_A=1+—"HIEFEZEE
2010 have been audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who are due to WSRO CIEE o FEMR A EANTTEZ
retire and, being eligible, shall offer themselves for re-appointment at the HATHERERRRAFEAG LRE - BE

Annual General Meeting. B EEET o
On behalf of the Board REEFE
Yeung Man Ying B
Chairman FE

Hong Kong B

3 March 2011 —ET——F=RH=H
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The Company’s goal is to continue to increase its transparency to
shareholders and the public and to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance. The principles of corporate governance adopted by the
Group emphasize a Board with high quality, sound internal control,

transparency, accountability and independence.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Except for code provision E.1.2 as mentioned below, the Company
has complied with the code provisions and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

THE BOARD

Board functions

The Board is responsible for the promotion of the success of the Company
by directing and guiding its affairs in an accountable and effective
manner. Board members acknowledge their duty to act in good faith, with
due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and its

shareholders.
The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board include:

1. Setting the Company’s mission and values;
Formulating strategic directions of the Company;

3. Reviewing and guiding corporate strategy; setting performance
objectives and monitoring implementation and corporate
performance;

4. Monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members; and

5. Ensuring the integrity of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting systems, including the independent audit, and that
appropriate systems of control are in place, in particular, systems

for monitoring risk, financial control, and compliance with the law.
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Board composition and practices
At 31 December 2010, the Board comprised six executive Directors and

three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms Yeung Man Ying

Mr Wong Cho Tung

Mr Wong Hei, Simon

Mr Zhang Jianping

Ms Tang Rongrong

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr Zhuang Xingfang

Mr Liu Hing Hung

Mr Xie Linzhen

Biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among them
are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile” section on

pages 29 to 33 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the “Directors and Senior Management Profile”
section, none of the Directors has any connection (including financial,
business or family relationship) with each other as required to be

disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules.

The roles of the chairman (Ms Yeung Man Ying) are separated from
those of the president (Mr Wong Hei, Simon) in order to reinforce
their respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
The chairman is responsible for developing strategic direction and
development of the Group and the president, working with and
supported by the executive Directors, is responsible for managing the
Group’s business affairs, including the implementation of strategies
adopted by the Board and attending to the formulation and successful
implementation of Group’s policies and assuming full accountability to the

Board for all Group’s operations.
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The independent non-executive Directors contribute to the Company
with diversified industry expertise, advise the management on strategy
development and ensure that the Board maintains high standards of
financial and other mandatory reporting as well as provide adequate
checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and

the Company as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has given a written
confirmation to the Company confirming that he has met the criteria
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules regarding the guidelines for the

assessment of independence of non-executive Directors.

The Board delegates specific tasks to the Group’s management including
the implementation of strategies and decisions approved by the Board
and the preparation of accounts for approval by the Board before public

reporting.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify its Directors and officers for their liabilities arising out of

corporate affairs. The insurance coverage is reviewed annually.

Regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to give all Directors
an opportunity to attend. Directors may attend meetings in person or
through other means of electronic communication in accordance with
the Bye-laws. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant rules
and regulations. Directors shall have full access to information on the
Group and are able to obtain independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by the Directors. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice in 2010. The company
secretary of the Company shall prepare minutes and keep records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board meetings, which

will be available for inspection by Directors upon request.
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The Board held four meetings in 2010. The following is the attendance

record of each Director at the Board meetings for the year under review:

Number of meetings attended/

Name of Director Number of meetings held

Ms Yeung Man Ying 4/4
Mr Wong Cho Tung 4/4
Mr Wong Hei, Simon 4/4
Mr Zhang Jianping 4/4
Ms Tang Rongrong 4/4
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard 4/4
Mr Zhuang Xingfang 4/4
Mr Liu Hing Hung 4/4
Mr Xie Linzhen 4/4

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have a nomination committee. The Board is
responsible for nominating appropriate person, either to fill in casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors for election by

shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.

As and when circumstances required, the Board will meet to discuss
nomination of new directors. In considering the suitability of a candidate
for directorship, the Board will consider criteria such as the candidate’s
qualifications, experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the

requirements under the Listing Rules.
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The re-election procedure set out in the Bye-laws provides that one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or if their number is not a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to but not less than one third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years at each annual general meeting
of the Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director throughout the meeting at which he
retires. The Directors to retire by rotation will be those who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the same day
those retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be

determined by lot.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period which give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
selected appropriate accounting policies, applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimation that are prudent, fair and reasonable,
ensured all applicable accounting standards are followed and prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps accounting records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and which enable the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance (Cap 32 of the Laws of Hong

Kong) and the applicable accounting standards.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
for dealing in securities of the Company by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code for
the year ended 31 December 2010.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting the
Board in achieving its goals of providing the packages needed to attract,
retain and motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company

successfully.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include: (i) making
recommendations to the Directors on the Company’s policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policies on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms
of the specific remuneration package of each executive Director and
senior management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Directors from time to time; and (iv) considering and approving the
grant of share options to eligible participants pursuant to the share option
schemes adopted or to be adopted by the Company. Terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee which have been adopted by the Board

are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee had one meeting in 2010 and
had reviewed the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management of the Group. The members and attendance of the meeting

are as follows:

Number of meeting attended/

Name of Director Number of meeting held

Mr Wong Cho Tung 1/1
Mr Zhuang Xingfang 1/1
Mr Xie Linzhen 1/1

No Directors took part in any discussion about his or her own

remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors, being Mr Zhuang Xingfang and
Mr Xie Linzhen, and one executive Director, being Mr Wong Cho Tung.
They have substantial experience in human resources management. The

Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr Zhuang Xingfang.

Executive Directors, assisted by the Group’s Human Resources
department, are responsible for reviewing all relevant remuneration
information and obtaining market conditions in addition to considering
the performance of individuals and the profitability of the Group, and
proposing to the Remuneration Committee for consideration and
approval, remuneration packages for Directors and senior management.
Executive Directors, however, do not participate in the determination of

their own remuneration.

The primary objective of the remuneration policy on executive
remuneration package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executives in promoting the success of the Group. The remuneration
package comprises basic salary, and may include discretionary bonus

and/or share options.

Each of the executive Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is
subject to review by the Remuneration Committee after such executive

Directors has completed 12 months of services.

Subject to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the
Company may, at its sole discretion, grant share options to executive
Directors in accordance with the share option schemes adopted by the

Company.

Each of the executive Directors (except Ms Yeung Man Ying and Mr
Wong Cho Tung) is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the
Remuneration Committee by reference to the performance of the Group

and the Director.

Each of Mr Zhuang Xingfang, Mr Liu Hing Hung and Mr Xie Linzhen was
appointed for a fixed term of one year. A new appointment letter will be
signed in January each year. Their term of appointment is subject to
the right of the independent non-executive Director or the Company to
terminate the appointment of the independent non-executive Director at

any time by giving at least one month’s notice in writing.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
with the written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and code provision C.3 of the Corporate Governance
Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
to provide an independent review of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of the
Group and oversee the audit process and other duties and responsibilities

as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee members met twice in 2010 to review with senior
management and the Company’s external auditors the internal and
external audit findings, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group, and Listing Rules and statutory compliance, and discussed
auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial reporting
matters (including the 2009 annual financial statements and 2010
interim financial statements before recommending them to the Board for

approval).

The following is the attendance record of each members at the Audit

Committee meetings for the year under review:

Number of meetings attended/

Name of Director Number of meetings held

Mr Liu Hing Hung 2/2
Mr Zhuang Xingfang 2/2
Mr Xie Linzhen 2/2

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr Liu Hing Hung, Mr Zhuang Xingfang and Mr Xie
Linzhen. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr Liu Hing Hung who has

professional qualifications in accountancy.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual report and

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2010.

BEREEY
ARFBRILRE ETRAE2LEREEE

AT RS RIS RIS C.3 R E M5 A E BitE
#HEcERZES((EREEY]) - BREE
SZIEREBERGPESTERAEEV RS
B - REBES MR B IR R 2 BRI RRH
BYE  EEBREFANESFERIRHE

i E R AT o
EVZBEKRER=Z —ﬁiﬁf‘%ﬁTﬁWX@

& EERERE RARQE 2 NI EAN
EHAMRIMNBERER - AERERN S u+
REIRZAED - LA KR ETRRAIRER 2 BFI1E
S URLE TR - RIS ERE IR KA
TR i%ﬁ( BIEEE ST NFEMBRE
k= T¢$%%%ﬁ%f“§$AMEZ
Al T EITER) &7 o

UTRERERDBEFEAERRZEEGHLZ
HEACER

HESZE
BEEHS BIEBRRE
BEHLE 2/2
E1THE 2/2
AR S 2/2

¥
W
)m]n

EH=-RBIUFNTERTEERE
FERERBBIREEANX - BREE
TEEERETR  WABEXEHE

¥
O
-l

)

o I H-T B
m

o

SEEMNARERBE
—RLFE 2 FREEEVBR

E-TE

=

N
o W
[l >mo
+ g

o

%rr%}
|



SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2010

Corporate Governance Report
EELRE

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu regarding their independence and objectivity and had a
meeting with Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the external auditors of the

Company, to discuss the scope of their audit and approve the scope.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the external auditors. For the year ended
31 December 2010, the Company paid Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
external auditors of the Company, HK$1.65 million and HK$0.3 million as

audit fees and interim financial report of 2010 viewing fee respectively.

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 55 to 56 of this

annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control systems have been designed to allow the Directors
to monitor the Group’s overall financial position, safeguard its assets,
provide reasonable assurance against fraud and errors, and to manage

the risks in failing to achieve the Group’s objectives.

The Group has a defined scope of authority governing activities of the
Directors and senior management. Directors monitor the business
activities closely and review monthly financial results operations. The

Group from time to time updates and improves the internal controls.

The Directors acknowledges that it is their responsibility to maintain
effective risk management and internal control system and to review them
at regular intervals. The Directors manages risks by strategic planning,
appointment of appropriately qualified and experienced personnel at
senior management positions, monitoring the Group’s performance
regularly, maintaining effective control over capital expenditure and
investments, and setting a high standard of code of conduct for

employees to follow.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department of the Group was responsible for
conducting internal audits of the Group. Internal audits are designed to
provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the internal control
systems of the Group are effective and the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives are being managed properly. The
department also conducts other projects and investigation work as
required. The Directors were satisfied that an effective control system
had been in operation having reviewed the material controls and all other
major components of the internal control system of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
COMMUNICATIONS

The Group promotes investor relations and communications by setting
up meetings with the investment community. The Group also responds to
requests for information and queries from the investment community by

the investor relations personnel.

The Board is committed to provide clear and full information of the Group
to shareholders through sending the shareholders the Company’s interim
and annual reports, circulars, notices, financial reports as and when
appropriate and providing additional information to shareholders in the

“Investor Relations” section of the Company’s website.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity for
communications between the Board and its shareholders. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting. Notice of the
Annual General Meeting and related papers are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting and the said notice is also
published on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Chairman and Directors will answer questions on the Group’s business
at the meeting. External auditors will also attend the Annual General

Meeting.
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According to the code provision E.1.2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
the chairman of the Board shall attend the annual general meeting of
the Company and arrange for the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees (as appropriate) or in the absence of the
chairman of such committees, another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to be available to answer

questions at the annual general meeting.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 14 May 2010
(2010 AGM™), Ms Yeung Man Ying, the chairman of the Board, was
unable to attend due to unexpected business engagement. Mr Chan Tat
Wing, Richard, an executive Director and the chief finance officer of the
Group, chaired the 2010 AGM on behalf of the chairman of the Board
pursuant to the Bye-laws and was available to answer questions. Mr Wong
Cho Tung, an executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee together with Mr Liu Hing Hung, an independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee, were also
available at the 2010 AGM to answer questions from shareholders of the

Company.

Members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such

requisition.

Pursuant to rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at
a general meeting must be taken by poll. Therefore, all the resolutions put

to the vote at the Annual General Meeting will be taken by way of poll.

The poll is conducted by the Company’s registrars and the results of the
poll will be published on website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
Financial and other information is made available on the Company’s
website and updated regularly. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
shareholders can be sent in writing to the Board or the secretary of the

Company at the Company’s registered address.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B %S EM H E

—FFEFH

Deloitte.
BE)

TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SIM Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 142, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF SIM TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as of 31 December 2010 and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

3 March 2011
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Consolidated Income Statement

2 A (b 24
RelaE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=1+—HLLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and losses

Research and development expenses
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted

WA
SHERAR

EH

LN
Hitole s KB 18
MR kAEER
HHE R KA
1T

B R

B 75 At )
IR

AN A

T RREERM

ARBBIR
ESRl g o

2 GBIL)
R

ey

Notes

B aE

10

12

13

15

57

2010 2009
—2-8E —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
4,034,031 2,983,532
(3,541,784) (2,693,677)
492,247 289,855
106,695 74,877
27,559 27,406
(146,489) (79,942)
(94,818) (70,253)
(108,102) (90,260)
(10,288) (3,061)
266,804 148,622
(29,180) (15,002)
237,624 133,620
233,349 128,975
4,275 4,645
237,624 133,620
15.0 8.5

14.4 8.5
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BHE-Z-ZF+_A=+—HIFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Exchange difference arising on translation
to presentation currency

Change in fair value of available-for-sale
investments

Reclassification adjustment — transfer to
profit or loss on disposal
of available-for-sale investments

Surplus on transfer of land use rights and
property, plant and
equipment to investment properties
at fair value

Deferred tax liability on surplus on
transfer of land use rights and
property, plant and equipment to
investment properties at fair value

Other comprehensive income
for the year (net of tax)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

RERZE A

Hh2=mmlies

REF 25| EBEL
BIEE H Z= &R

AHHEREZ AT EES

BN BRE—LE
AHHERER
B E R
FIARESE R L
ERERYE - B5
REBEREWEM
EEZBR
FARFEE
TibERERYE - W5
REBEEREYEM
EEXBBREERIARAE

AEHpEEUER (FIRFHIR)

RNEZE WS

T3 BIEEMEE N =BT
ZIN/NG] S
FIEERR S

2010 2009
—e-BF _—TTh5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T
237,624 133,620
50,900 6,319
- 25,366

- (25,366)

- 86,437

- (21,609)
50,900 71,147
288,524 204,767
283,782 200,122
4,742 4,645
288,524 204,767




RANREEERAR —FFFFH

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A TSR
At 31 December 2010
RZZE—TF+-_A=+—H

Non-current assets
Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment
Land use rights
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Available-for-sale investments
Deposits paid for property,

plant and equipment

Deposits paid for land use rights

Current assets
Inventories
Properties under development for sales
Trade receivables
Notes and bills receivables
Other receivables, deposits and
prepayments
Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and notes payables
Other payables, deposits received
and accruals
Bank borrowings
Tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
REME

W% - BB KRR E
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mE

BVEE
EREIREE
AHHERE
E - BB R

RN 2EE

SHEG L ERE N2 ZS

RBEE

&
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FEWE 5 8RR
e RIE K ARE
HoADFE YRR
Bwe RANR
2 HEMRITER
RITRERRIR S

REAE
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izl

ENEZRARFE

HADRE AR -
K e IR

RITEE

FERTEIR

RBEEFE
REERRBRE

Bz e

Notes

B aE

16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25
25

25

26
26

27

27
28

59

2010 2009
—2-8E —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
243,832 221,217
343,389 255,454
96,108 82,959
28,321 28,321
177,453 179,469
9,592 3,438
15,876 -
20,226 =

- 109,224

934,797 880,082
440,013 411,090
110,441 -
110,420 141,555
124,304 75,173
279,997 278,155
616,828 329,114
534,522 532,276
2,216,525 1,767,363
420,357 516,167
198,904 262,732
640,335 271,123
29,488 15,841
1,289,084 1,065,863
927,441 701,500
1,862,238 1,581,582
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At 31 December 2010
RZF—FTF+-_A=+—H

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liability
Deferred tax liabilities

The consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 142 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2011 and are signed

on its behalf by:

WONG CHO TUNG
EE

DIRECTOR

BE

Notes
BisE
BARRHE
A& 29
s 30
RAEHEE A E(RES
Eealiiyr T
- ey b
ERBAE
FEFRIAE F 21

WONG HEI, SIMON
£

DIRECTOR

EF

2010 2009
—e-BF _—TTh5
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
156,962 152,871
1,634,103 1,374,115
1,791,065 1,526,986
28,025 17,483
1,819,090 1,544,469
43,148 37,113
1,862,238 1,581,582
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZZTF+-_RA=+—HILFE

At 1 January 2009

Proftfor the year
(ther comprehensive income for the year

Total comprefensive income for the year

Issue of new shares due to
exercise of share options

Transfer upon exercise of shiare options

Recognition of equity Setfled
Share-Dased payments

Capital contrbution from non-controlling
Interests of a subsidiary

Acquisitions of subsidiaries

Dividends paid

At 31 December 2009

Proftfor the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of new shares due to

exercise of share options
Transfer upon exercise of shiare options

Recogniton of equty setled share-based 73

payments
Capital contribution from

non-controling inferests of subsidiaries
Dividends paid

At 31 December 2010

REENE-A-B

RERH
TEREMRENE

FERENEER

RiTEERER
Ep

ifif Dudits
)
et
HEATHER
BRZAIRA
WEHELT
e

H

Attributable to owners of the Company

RIERNETZA=T-B 152871

REREH
BEREMAENE

FERENEER

et
HELAERES

ZEREA
Rfe

KARRRES

Statutory Share  Investment  Properties Non-

Share Share  surplus Other ~ option revaluation revaluation Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  resene  reseve  resene reseme resene  fesene profits Total  Interests Total

HE BRE  RE 0% F2R
ke ROEE EBEE AMEE 0 BR EGEE ERRE ENRE TR0 & B& A
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSOOD  HK$00O
Ten fér Thr TEn  TEn TR Thr  TEn  TEr TR TR TEn

(Notea)  (Nofeb)
(Hita (Wb

L9 BB 759 IO 20162 - 891 11218 436313 13331 133,31
- - - - - - - 189 1897 Aed 133620
- - - - - - o8 6319 - 4 - 4
- - - - - - B8 6319 189 012 464 204767
112 8440 - - - - - - - 9 - 95
- - - (402 - - - - - - -
- - - - 9% - - - - 929 - 929
- - - - - - - - - - 50 510
- - - - - - - - - - R 1228
- - - - - - - - U3 734 - (U3
493343 27599 97091 25399 - 73739 118504 537940 1526986 17483 1544469
- - - - - - - - 03349 233349 4215 237624
- - - - - - - 50433 - 50433 467 50900
- - - - - - - 50433 233349 283782 4742 288524
4091 33250 - - - - - - - -
- 16821 - - (16821) - - - - - - -
- - - - 16566 - - - - 16,566 - 16566
- - - - - - - - - - 580 5800
- - - - - - - - (736100 (73,610) - (73610
543914 27599 97091 25144 - 73739 168937 697,679 1,791,005 28,025 1819,09

R-B-RET-A=1-R 156,962

6l
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEF+-A=+—HLFE

Notes:

(a)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), before distribution of the net profit
each year, the subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside
10% of their net profit after taxation for the statutory surplus
reserve fund (except where the reserve has reached 50% of the
subsidiaries’ registered capital). The reserve fund can only be
used, upon approval by the board of directors of the relevant
subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital.

Other reserve is arisen from the reorganisation in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Fi

(a)

(b)

Ao ARFMBE ([FE])EERERZRE R
BRI 2 B A R B AR IR i A 2 Al B AR
B 10% (E AT B RS (RSB E R Rl
BARE0% BI TR o ZFFEFESER BREKEREE
BIEMER - HARSHEMNBARESE RERE
ERBIE -

REBARABRMNEEH AR SAERATER LD
MAETEARESE 2 E bk o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AW AN~}
i 5IRE //HJi?%
For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=1+—HLLFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Interest expenses
Depreciation and amortisation
Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment
Share-based payments expense
Recycling of gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Allowances for (reverse of) bad and doubtful
debts, net
Write-down of inventories
Gain from changes in fair values of
investment properties
Interest income

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Increase in inventories

Increase in properties under
development for sales

Decrease in trade receivables

Increase in notes and bills receivables

Decrease (increase) in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

(Decrease) increase in trade and
notes payables

(Decrease) increase in other payables,
deposits received and accruals

Cash generated from operations
Interest received

Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REER
BRABEATE R

B THIRE (LR -
FBHX
EREH

HEME - BiE NRE2EE

BRI
R i AT
it 2 s
KRERAE(BE)FH

A
BANEATESDAS

FEBA

RN
LR NHENEEN

PRE SRR
PR EE S T B A

HitEUERR B2 R
BRISFIER D (1)
ENESRARERE
(R 12:hn
HiEMERN - EfuRe
RER IR (R ) B

RAREZRE
EYA B
ERAEH

REGEZH2HEFE
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2010 2009
—s-2  —TIhf
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FiBT
266,804 148,622
10,288 3,061
210,300 190,447
74 45
16,566 9,259
- (25,366)
10,640 (91)
6,513 14,601
(15,310) (4,013)
(8,994) (5,157)
496,881 331,408
(22,406) (145,556)
(9,815) =
21,985 93,013
(48,340) (57,044)
1,086 (127,984)
(101,243) 160,959
(66,594) 28,131
271,554 282,927
8,994 5,157
(17,208) (24,050)
263,340 264,034
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEF+-A=+—HLFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of land use rights

Deposits paid for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits paid for purchase of land use rights

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Development costs paid

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale
investments

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Increase in pledged bank deposits

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issue of shares

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Dividends paid

Interest paid

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders of a subsidiary

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR, represented by bank balances
and cash

REEH

BENE  BERRE
BB L ihfE A
REEVR - BEX
R 2EE
RIS LiERES N2 RE
YRR 7]
2RFRERA
BEAMHERE
HEAHHEREZ
FS3R
HEME - BiE KR
SR
BARIRRITIF SR AN

ARREFBZ2REFE

MEEH

BT

RITEEMERE

BRIBTEE

BRRE

RENPNSS

LS NGIEE 2§
ZEBEA

REMETDREFE

RERREEEER
B EE

FIRERRAEEERE

ExBE ¥

FRESRAESEERE
RITEHRASE

Note
et

31

2010 2009
—2-8F —TTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER THT
(124,409) (80,827)
- (5,594)
(20,226) =
- (97,546)
- (36,942)
(159,756) (119,689)
(15,876) -
- 62,679

42
(284,250) (329,114)
(604,475) (607,033)
37,341 9,562
733,155 457,813
(366,797) (186,690)
(73,610) (27,348)
(10,288) (3,061)
5,800 570
325,601 250,846
(15,534) (92,153)
532,276 623,388
17,780 1,041
534,522 532,276
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=1+—HLLFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

—RER

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) with limited liability. Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Info Dynasty Group Limited (“Info
Dynasty”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the corporate information section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, as the Directors consider that
such presentation is more appropriate for a company listed in
Hong Kong and for the convenience of the shareholders.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacturing,
design and development and sale of liquid crystal display
(“LCD”) modules, mobile handset solutions, and wireless
communication modules and modems.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

RARBEARE—NN\—FRANE(EE
R BEREFMKL AEREBRAR - 2
SREEEERAGAREBRE LS ([H
BEZES | sEfAZ 2 Info Dynasty Group
Limited ([Info Dynasty]) » KA R Z =
BRFEFESEMEBEFR A TER AR

=,

/]

T

ARBBERRARNEER - (ER—HEEN
EHRRBMGEARRBRR - EFRREAH
BHRERAETZ2INERIRE -

ARR B —FREZERAR - HBRRZE
REBR/BRBETRRE - BEIT AR R R
BACEMRIE R BB 2 BUE - R HER

BRANETR] R RS F] 2 BlRR B 35 3R
HER ([ER IR EER D)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new and revised IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") of
the IASB which are or have become effective.

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had no
material effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 2 (Amendments)
R SRS 2R 2 5t (IBETA)

IFRS 3 (as revised in 2008)
BRI TSRS 2RI 3 5k (= NFLIERT)

IAS 27 (as revised in 2008)

BB & EERIE 27 5E (Z 2T N\FKIERT) AR

RAEE  AREERKBEREH LIRS
2 ((BEReHEAZE S ]) MMHIA TR &
RRAEETER - 5] R ke ([ #7] RARERTBIR
e £l ) RERMHERERNZEG 2
BRMBRE2ERE e ((BRMRE]) &
FERI RRERAREE AR -

RN ] RIERT BRI H 3R 5 A A R
BRSBTS Bl 2R e M BmRL EER

=27
FE o

REELBIRFEBIUAT B LRME R AR ER
HUFTR] R ARMERTERI - (E7] Sd ke

Group cash-settled share-based payment transactions
SEURSEERH MRS

Business combinations
FBE 0

Consolidated and separate financial statements
& MBI

65
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2. PRERFTE] RARAER] 2 BIFR B FE 4R
ﬁf%ﬂﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ

IAS 39 (Amendments)
Rt AERI 25 39 5 (185 48)

IFRSs (Amendments)
BIRR B Ssh ES 2E R (18 RTA)

IFRSs (Amendments)

RIS R (BETA)

IFRIC 17
SUBHERERRER 17 R

IFRSs (Amendments)
SRS 2R (IR AN)

IFRS 1 (Amendments)

BIFR M TR E RIS 1 5% (IBFTA)

IFRS 1 (Amendments)

BIFR M TR E RIS 1 5% (IBFTA)

IFRS 7 (Amendments)
RIS IR E RIS 7 5% (IER]AN)

IFRS 9
BUR BT 5 ¥ 5 AR RIZE O 4R

IAS 12 (Amendments)
BB ERIE 12 5t (BFTA)

IAS 24 (as revised in 2009)

R ERZE 24 R (ZFTNFLISE])
IAS 32 (Amendments)

BIPR 2 F2ERISE 32 5% (1551 4N)

IFRIC 14 (Amendments)
BRI S EREEEEE 14 9 (85T 4)

IFRIC 19
RUBHRERBREER 19 %

Eligible hedged items
S ERERIER

Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2009

RZZBRAFRM 2 BRMBERELER 2 B0

Amendments to IFRS 5 as part of improvements to
IFRSs issued in 2008

BIRR AT i 2RI 55 2RI AMERRN ZZETNF
M 2 BIFR B 75 3 5 42 Bl 2 B D

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

AHEAADIKIFREEE

Improvements to IFRSs issued in 2010!
R —TE R < BRI B 22 Bl 2 B !

Limited exemption from comparative IFRS 7
disclosures for first-time adopters?

BRERANE B BB R S RIS 7 SRR R A
HeEREAE?

Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for
first-time adopters?®
BB AR BAR R AR B IR ER AN E BT B A

Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets?

RE-BReREE®

Financial instruments*

SR A

Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets®
IRAERIIE : ABRAE E UL °

Related party disclosures®

RS R

Classification of rights issues’
RS %7

Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement®
XIRESTBNFIRES

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity instruments?
AR ET BER /AR
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HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.

BRANETR] R RS F] 2 BlRR B 35 3R
HEL ([ERMBRELER D)
(%)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 or 1
January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
C Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011.
’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2010.

IFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under IFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of IAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured at either
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates
to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under
IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or
loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

2.

BRANETR] R RS F] 2 BIRR B 35 3R
ﬁf%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that IFRS 9 that will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year
ending 31 December 2013 and that the application of IFRS
9 will mainly affect the classification and measurement of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments.

The amendments to IAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery
of underlying assets” mainly deal with the measurement of
deferred tax for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with IAS 40
“Investment property”. Based on the amendments, for the
purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets for investment properties measured using the fair value
model, the carrying amounts of the investment properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is not
practicable to provide reasonable estimate of the effect of
application of IFRS 9 and IAS 12 (Amendments) as stated
above until detailed review has been completed.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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EXEFHE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

BEARSTEE (8)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling
interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010,
losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s equity
were allocated against the interests of the Group except to
the extent that the non-controlling interests had a binding
obligation and were able to make an additional investment to
cover the losses.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January 2010
The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition
under IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at
their fair values at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Business combinations (coNTINUED)

Business combinations that took place prior to 1 January
2010 (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised
amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the acquisition, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of
cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently whenever
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting period.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the
unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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BE-PPEI-A=t—RILER
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXSFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Goodwill (CONTINUED) BE ()

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Revenue recognition (CONTINUED)

Value added tax (“VAT”) refund is recognised as income
when the Group’s rights to receive the VAT refund has been
established.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year. Exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the
translation reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXSFBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Taxation BiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable and deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Taxation (coNTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Leasing (CONTINUED) H# (')
Government grants BT B A

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants where primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets. Government
grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure, except for those transfer
from property, plant and equipment and land use rights which
are measured at fair value at date of transfer. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair value using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Investment properties (CONTINUED)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HEZ
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

BEARSTEE (8)

Property, plant and equipment (coNTINUED)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-occupied
purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Land use rights

Land use rights represent the prepaid lease payments
of leasehold interests in land under operating lease
arrangements and are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms, except for those held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation purpose and classified as investment
properties are carried at fair values.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Land use rights (cONTINUED)

If land use rights becomes an investment property because its
use has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation,
any difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of that item at the date of transfer is recognised in other
comprehensive income and included in properties revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset,
the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to
accumulated profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREFBE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Intangible assets B EE
Research and development expenditure IR FHZEEH

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Intangible assets (cONTINUED)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and initially recognised
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

Technical know-how acquired in a business combination
comprise the rights to use certain technologies for the
manufacture of wireless communication module solutions
and mobile handset design solutions.
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HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

BEARSTEE (8)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of
goodwill above)

At end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. In
addition, intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both the
land use rights and development cost of the property. Net
realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses and
the anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of property comprises construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the Group’s
accounting policy and directly attributable cost incurred
during the development period. On completion, the properties
are transferred to properties held for sales.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASEE (#)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified to either available-
for-sale investments or loans and receivables. All regular
way purchases or sale of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (CONTINUED) ST A (&)
Financial assets (CONTINUED) THEE (&)
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EZ B E

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investment.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables, notes and
bills receivable, other receivables and deposits, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets of the Group are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASEE (#)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Impairment loss on financial assets (coNTINUED)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period of 90 days.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

ERT A (&)

EHEERE (F)

PEMEREENS @ HEIEFEEETEE
&

o BOUARIRZUHHBRBAMBRMEE
%

EREH - PlanfER REHEEN B K
PN A

o ERABREMEEAKERFHETT
B EAE B

s RUBRHBSZEMEERZERTS o

HETHEINEREENS @ INEKE SR
R EEERIRF AT RENEERHLRIZ
AAEEFHRE - BERRESRERNTE
EBRABRASERENERER - URAS
BT 1915 B HI 90 R AV IE A R H) SR 2XHE A
HIRER -

RIRKATIENSREEN S @ BEBERRE
EMREERZALUSBEENEITSEDR
KFFAOBEIARRR SR ENREROEZRET
B - ZEREEEF T ERER AR -

SLIREEAS IR EMEEMNS - EARE
FREECHE SEERATHERRES
18 YIREERAERZRE BRI ETERN
B ARKRERENREMNER I ZRAE -



RASKEERRAT —

—FFFEHR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR M ISIRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010

HE_Z—ZHF+_A=+—HILFE
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (coNTINUED) SRITH (&)
Impairment loss on financial assets (coNTINUED) 2L EBE ()
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by MREWE ZEEDEEE R F B TR EEE AN
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the AN Fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%

exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

TE%LM]J/UZ RERREEZZEBRAR

AR D—IEFEH&T%HE R A N AT LU
B - EASRRARZERE M o BERAE B ARTHE
$HZ IR E T AR ©

RILEHER A ENSREEMNS @ NREH
BEE—HIRE - RERERN 2R A B
W R E] BERREBREEENFHEE
FE - ZHCHERNBREEREEERER
B - W ARZIAE ER B ERE R B REET
FB Y AR SR EREA O HK AR
RIGEAETTRE -

ETHEERKE
A—EEBERMBETZERBERBRATAT
RIBFTRT LB M) B MR LA N & Bl B (B A
BARTANERT AN -

BATERERANAEEEE 2 SRR SEH
BREMBABRZEMNGH -

BB

'K ﬂf/ﬁﬁu+k~/i\mﬂﬁ1f2%fﬁﬂ$&ﬁ/\ﬁ
BHRESMEX B2 T7% - BRMNEXSER
%EZE@%&E%B‘UE%@EH&(HD;@%);‘i&,ﬁﬂ
BT IR (A SR AGR N FRAOFI K

MBS HIRE R KRR o

85



86

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR
For the year ended 31 December 2010

HEZ

TRE+_A=+—RLFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.

EASTEE (#)

Financial instruments (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities and equity (coNTINUED)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and notes payables, other
payables and accruals and bank borrowings) are initially
measured at fair values and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid or
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES BEARSTEER (8)
(CONTINUED)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions DRGBARZRS (&)
(CONTINUED)
At the time when the share options are exercised, the T REIRHERS - A RBEIREFEEER IR
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will 15 - BEARGEE - BHERERERB D
be transferred to share premium. When the share options RITE s BEIRE N R B HI B LB - AR
are forfeited after the vesting date or still not exercised at the IR ERER 2 B8 - BBBA R
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

4. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT EXRBERE
The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as ANE B W BUR R A IS TR B AN B DA (R (542
to maintain creditor and market confidence and to substain AR5 EME DA R R R E TSRS AR FF
future development of business. The Group defines the B AEEBEATE BIREERALEE -
capital of the Group as the total shareholders’ equity.
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior REE 7 BRI ER — FHELL EFTE -
year.

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS €®MITH

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including B EWIRER

cash and cash equivalents)
Available-for-sale investments AR E 2 RE
Financial liabilities
Amortised cost

ERAE

[RE:F/59N

(BERERREFEEAR)

SMT AE5)
2010 2009

—e-®5 -—TTNG

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT AT

1,599,064 1,258,025

15,876 -

1,136,370 900,616
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

51

£@MITHE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables and payables, bills receivable, notes receivables
and payables, other receivables and deposits, other payables
and accruals, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
bank borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency sales
and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. Approximately 36% (2009: 25%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
of the group entity making the sale, whilst almost 48% (2009:
50%) of costs are denominated in the group entity’s functional
currency.

At the end of the reporting period, the major financial assets
and liabilities of the Group denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities
are trade receivables, notes receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade payables and bank borrowings
and the amounts are disclosed in notes 25, 26, 27 and 28
respectively.

B R EE K B REB R

AEBEZ T2 TABRRBKRLENE SR
R BURERE - B RENRER  HtRYKER
RS - BNZBARETER  BHEMRT
Tk RITREBRBITEE - ZF2RMTAZ
HER BN ETRE - RELeR T A6
Z R IA K B BRE % B 2 BUR B T
X BEERERERZTRAR - AREREE
R AN A R EE & 5

BHmE

AEELZRWBARMINEETES - $45%
EEEINERER - NEBHEEL306% (=ZF
TNF : 25%) UEBEBETEENIREE
BEPAIN B RESHE » T #48% (Z T T S4F ¢
50%) MR A Z A EEENINEEBEHE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

£RMITE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

MEEREEN B RERE (F)

Currency risk (continued) E¥m ks (1E)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RIERAELE - AEBUIINESHENEKEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the FEEBENREEDT
reporting date are as follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE =0
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-FF —TTNF —T-BF _FTTNHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
United States Dollars (“USD”) 27T 204,288 124,319 932,067 359,989

The management monitors foreign exchange exposure by
entering non-deliverable foreign exchange forward contracts
to eliminate the currency exposures in USD denominated
bank borrowings. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair values of these forward contracts are
insignificant at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
(2009: 10%) increase and decrease in RMB against USD.
10% (2009: 10%) represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 10% (2009: 10%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 10% against USD for
the both years. For a 10% weakening of RMB against USD,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit and the balances below would be negative.

EEESLUEBTRUINERRAL - TIHR
EFHERTIERERRR - BERIINERR
ARRIEZNEARR  ZFEHENERS
HIRE A FE SRR o

TERHFHEIINEAEEURARB L ETA
B/ BE10% (ZEZTHFE : 10%) HEKE -
10% (=BT NF : 10%) KRR EEELINERE
KB R BB RS o BBUE D ITE BB
BETHEERIEE RINERAS MR HRE AR
EREL10% (ZZTZNF : 10%) FAE - L TH
EERERAREHEZTTEMFESFHE 10% 5
&mFEANER - s AR HEITTERE10%
g EEHERERROTZE MU TR
HIEZEEE -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (conTINUED)

Profit piatl|

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure on outstanding USD
bank balances, receivables, payables and bank borrowings of the
Group at the end of the reporting period.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits, notes and bills
receivables, pledged bank deposits, and bank balances.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as
at 31 December 2010 and 2009 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The Group’s bank balances and cash are deposited with
banks in Hong Kong and the PRC and the Group has limited
the exposure to any single financial institution. The credit
risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with good credit-rating.

BB EE Y B R (F)

Eime ()
BZ T ()
2010 2009
—E-EF =T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET TR
18,638 17,854
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

5.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risks with exposure
limited to certain customers. As at 31 December 2010, three
(2009: two) customers amounted HK$68,182,000 (2009:
HK$112,803,000) comprised approximately 62% (2009:
80%) of the Group’s trade receivables. These customers are
within the same mobile phone technology industry in the PRC.
The management closely monitors the subsequent settlement
of the customers and does not grant long credit period to the
counterparties. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2010, the carrying amount of bank
borrowings amounted to HK$640,335,000 (2009:
HK$271,123,000). All such bank borrowings included a
repayment on demand clause exercisable at any time by the
relevant banks. In accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements, the aggregate principal
and interest cash outflows amounted to HK$644,512,000
(2009: HK$274,705,000). However, shall the relevant banks
exercise their rights to demand immediate repayment, the
principal amounts of these bank borrowings amounted
to HK$640,335,000 (2009: HK$271,123,000) will be
repayment on demand. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretionary rights to demand immediate .

R TE(H)

B E RS  BE R (F)

EER (&)
AEEGFEEERBERHNER  BBREFR
BETRF - RZZE—ZF+=-A=+—H =
Z(ZEZTNF - W%) B F 568,182,000
TT(ZZTZ AL : 112,803,000/87T) @ HER
REBMOERE SERLDN62% (ZZETNEF
80%) - ZERF &R NHBEIMERBEEE
RITITER - EEBBRERTS AR &
BERTEeRRSHUFRLEREESR - 3t
T ARREFRALNEEZFERBEAKN
PEAE o

B E LR

EERPDECARTH  AEESERRER
RekReFEREREELER/TRHKX
Fo AERNAKEZEMRS - LRI RER
ERBoTE EREGEERITERZE
A AR & B F0RGE

RZE—ZTFF+-_A=+—H RITEED
R @ {H 640,335,000 T( = T E N F :
271,123,000/ 7T) - FTERITEERER 4
SRATE RN EREFETTEARERMEZER - 1R
BEER:EPHNEERD AR ERE
i 48 %8 5 644,512,00008 T (ZEE N F ¢
274,705,00077T) ° TR + anARARITITE4E
FIZSRBNEFE R - $R1T 5 B 640,335,000 7T
(ZZEZ N4 : 271,123,00078 7T ) N4 5B 1578
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (conTINUED)

The directors consider that liquidity risk is limited after
considering the future cash flows of the Group in the
foreseeable future, including the repayment schedule of bank
borrowings as discussed above and the short-term liabilities
which are required to repay within three months from the end
of the reporting period. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank borrowings and bank balances.

The Group currently does not have a cash flow interest rate
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors its
exposure to future cash flow risk as a result of change on
market interest rate and will consider hedging changes in
market interest rates should the need arise. A 100 basis point
(2009: 100 basis point) change represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of London Interbank Offered Rate
(“LIBOR") arising from the Group’s variable interest rate bank
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the Group’s exposure to
future cash flow risk on variable-rate bank balances as a result
of the change of market interest rate is insignificant and thus
variable-rate bank balances are not included in the sensitivity
analysis.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (coNTINUED)

5.

£RMITE (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk (conTINUED)

Sensitivity analysis (CONTINUED)

The sensitivity analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. If the interest rate of bank
borrowings had been 100 basis point (2009: 100 basis point)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2010
would decrease/increase by HK$5,597,000 (2009: decrease/
increase by HK$2,711,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions are determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices. The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with general accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

REVENUE

MEEREEN B RERE (F)

FIERE R ()

HREFE DT (&)

PRE D TR BRERS RS REENS
BT ARBFRAREEMRER - NIRTTEEF
K EFA/TREI00EZ (=TT 1 F : 1005
2 MATAEMBHERTE  AEEHEZ
T—FF+ - A=+—HILFENHE R
@A NN5,597,000B 7T (ZEZNE R
L /1#81012,711,000/7T) - EEZREREAE
E)Z BIRITIEENFIRER o

AVE
AEBEEH R 2 CRAEL ATES
=WIpFHs EAEMET - A eMEES
AFEDRAROEEERRBFBR SR E
SIHERBABT BT -

EEZRA/NGFE MEIWR DA HERAINRZ
EREEVNERABZRAEELQFER

St

Eo

WA

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold net of returns.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

TEER

Segment information is presented based on information
reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses
on types of goods delivered.

The Group currently organised into three revenue streams-
sale of mobile handset solutions, sale of LCD modules and
sale of wireless communication modules and modems. These
revenue streams are the basis of the internal reports about
components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the
executive directors in order to allocate resources to segments
and to assess their performance.

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2010

DRERERRERD KLY BREFHAAR
RAMITES  BIEBLERARERS 2ER
BHARNEYMHEEMZT -

AEERA = ARARR-HEB B FRERT
% HERMABT R M E B RARE R
BB - ZFWARBRSRTESEREN
BRASEARED ZARRE - ADEER
FTHRAFERR -

DREBAREE
TRAETEBIREEDRZWAREEDT

BE-F—TE A= —ALFE

Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of modules
handset LCD and modems
solutions modules HERS Segment
HERH HERS BAER total Elimination Consolidated
FREARFR BRER REEH DEEG b &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT TET TET THx TEL
Revenue WA
External sales HINEE 3,170,208 142,129 721,694 4,034,031 - 4,034,031
Inter-segment sales PEREE - 52,580 - 52,580 (52,580) -
Total fake] 3,170,208 194,709 721,694 4,086,611 (52,580) 4,034,031
Segment profit (loss) AEEN (BE) 203,764 (5,339) 69,663 268,088 - 268,088
Other income HiplA 20,710
Corporate expenses RERY (27,016)
Gain from changes in fair values  REMELF
of investment properties BEEHNE 15,310
Finance costs BERA (10,288)
Profit before taxation S 266,804
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2 EER (&)

Segment revenues and results (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2009

2B R ()
BE-FENF+-A=+—AILEE

Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of modules
handset LCD and modems
solutions modules HERR Segment
HEBE HERS BNESR fotal Elimination Consolidated
FRBATR BnER REEH# P fiisH )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr THr T THT T THr
Revenue WA
External sales HIMAE 1,834,995 204,664 943,873 2,983,532 - 2,983,532
Inter-segment sales NEFEHE - 44.09 - 4409 (44,09) =
Total FEk 1,834,995 248,760 943,873 3,027,628 (44,096) 2,983,532
Segment profit (l0ss) R (BE) 15,038 (11,828) 127371 130,581 - 130,581
Other income HiplA 11617
Corporate expenses NG5 (19,894)
Gain from changes in REMEZATE
fair values of BElia
investment properties 4013
Recycling of gain MEAHRIHE
on disposal of RAMB L s
available-for-sale
investments 25,366
Finance costs BEKA (3,061)
Profit before taxation G 148 622

The accounting policies of the operating segments are

the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment result represents the profit earned or loss
incurred by each segment without allocation of recycling
of gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments, gain
from changes in fair values of investment properties, rental
income, interest income, other income, corporate expenses,
finance costs and taxation. This is the measure reported to the
executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at mutually agreed terms.

AEEZED R G BEREN M 3 ATt A
SEZ S BRRMAR - DREERKELED
FEHERHEEREME L 2 W  REME
NFEEPRE  BEWA - FBYA - Bl
WA~ AR - BERARBRIEZER T &
DRMES 2 WEHEE - WHERTHITE
BZFEIE  NETERD B R RINF L ©
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7.

2 EER (A)

Segment assets and liabilities
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by operating segment:

At 31 December 2010

Segment assets

[nvestment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Deferred tax assets

Available-for-sale investments

Deposits paid for property, plant
and equipment

Properties under development
for sales

Other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities
— attributable to sale of LCD
modules
- attributable to operating
segment other than sale of
LCD modules (note)

Other payables, deposits received
and accruals

Bank borrowings

Tax payable

Deferred tax liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

PHEEREE

DT

RoE—FF+=A=1—H

Sale of
mobile
handset
solutions
HEBH
FREAAR
HK$'000
TR
PEEE 1,068,903
LEEVES
ER S
BRHEAE
AHNERE
% - BEREE
Zfzke
BRANEENE
H AR -
REREAFE
BERRITER
RTERERE
ReEE
PR
—HERBBEDERES
—HERBBETER
MM EED S
L (Hrit)

HMbENTR  EhERE
RUEs 3R

RITRE

FEfTHR
EERRAR

FREME

Sale of

wireless

Sale of communication
LCD modules and

modules modems
HERS BER
ETER KRB
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR Ti#n
254,929 161,450

88,539 -

TRIJIAEEREEN BRI ONEENBE

Consolidated
&E
HK$'000
TiEn

1,485,282
243,832
1,435
9,592
15,876

20,226
110,441

113,288
616,828

534,522

3,151,322

88,539

482,418

570,957

48,304
640,335
29,488
43,148

1,332,232



RABNREEERAR —FFFFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZHF+-A=+—HILLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED) PEEEREE (E)
At 31 December 2009 N EENFEf - H=+—H
Sale of
Sale of wireless
mobile Sale of communication
handset LCD modules and
solutions modules modems
HEVE) HERS BEER Consolidated
FREATR YN KRG )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T5n T5n Tir FHEr
Segment assets PEEE 782,910 183,419 311,198 1,277,527
Investment properties REMZ 221,217
Land use rights b 38342
Deferred tax assefs EREREEE 3438
Deposits paid for land use rights RRELHFRELN RS 109,224
Other receivables, deposits and EtEIREE -
prepayments RERBAFE 136,307
Pledged bank deposits BEARTER 329114
Bank balances and cash ROEBLES 532,276
Consolidated assets TRAE 2,647 445
Segment liabilities PREE
~ attributable to sale of LCD ~HERRED
modules HIRE(L - 226,177 - 226,177
— attributable to sale of wireless —HERGRHAER
communication modules and REBEHRERS
modems 1,989 - - 1,989
— attributable to operating segment —HERGBETERLING
other than sale of LCD modules BENBRN
(note) (Hrit) 469,073
697,239
Other payables, deposits received Hit ez
and accruals BiES RIE IR 81,660
Bank borrowings RfEE 271,123
Tax payable ERFIE 15,841
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAE 37,113

Consolidated liabilities RREfE 1,102,976
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

2 EER (A)

Segment assets and liabilities (coNTINUED)

Note: Liabilities attributable to operating segment other than sale of
LCD modules represented payables to common suppliers of the
operating segment other than sale of LCD modules, which cannot

be allocated to the respective segments on a reasonable basis.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than investment properties, certain property, plant and
equipment, land use rights, pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash, deposits paid for property,
plant and equipment and land use rights, available-for-
sale investments, deferred tax assets, properties under
development for sales and certain other receivables,
deposits and prepayment. Assets used jointly by
operating segments are allocated on the basis of the
revenues earned by individual operating segments; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than certain other payables, deposits received and
accruals, tax payable, bank borrowings and deferred
tax liabilities. Liabilities for which operating segments
are jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

TREERAE(H)

izt SHERSBRER AN EIE D RS 8 A R
FEAS S5 R R B AR R LAS M 0 8 S R0 B
EENHE  MEEABAREANHE -

EESBRARNESEHEER -

s KBREME BTUE BELRE-
TibfE R - S HEMRITER  RITHE
#HRIRE WYX - BERREAKLR
SRR NZRE  ATHEER
ﬁ‘ﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘¥E$W%%%¥
Ko T E A UK E%&ﬁﬁmﬁ
LA - %ﬁﬁ?ﬁ”* HEESE-E
ENEARERNEERSEEDEM
RERE AR : &

. rETHAEMNKE  BURIES RERT
MIE - EAIE - RITEERELER
BE ,\LM\\ B REHSIRELESD
o A EBEDHEARAENBERIBE
ERLAISE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZHF+-A=+—HLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. DEERE)
Other segment information Hitnp &R
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE—_FT—ZFFF_A=+—HIFEF
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Saleof  modules and
handset LCD modems
solutions modules HERR
HERE HERR EAER  Unallocated  Consolidated
FRBARE ETER REE# KB &E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThEx Thn Thn Thn ThEx
Amounts included in the HENEERY
measure of segment profit PEEEYR
or loss or segment assets: HeE
Additions of property, RENF -
plant and equipment T ki 97,863 8,054 16,956 1,536 124,409
Additions of intangible assets REREE 123,576 - 40,498 - 164,074
Depreciation of property, ER
plant and equipment BERS B E 26,565 12,622 4,122 231 43,540
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERH 128,171 - 40,617 - 168,788
Amortisation of land use rights T EREEE 1,713 204 373 - 2,290
Allowance for bad and REGEETS
doubtful debts, net 10,115 525 - - 10,640
Write-down of inventories HFERE 3,658 1,326 1,529 - 6,513
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z—ZE+_-_A=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7. DEEHRE)
Other segment information (CoNTINUED) Hittn BER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2009 BE—_ZFETNF+—_A=+—HIFEF
Sale of
wireless
Sale of communication
mobile Sale of modules and
handset LCD modems
solutions modules HERS
HEVE HERR BAELR Unallocated ~ Consolidated
FHRBANE B REE# Rk e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL THL TR TR
Amounts included in the HENEERY
measure of segment profit PREESR
or loss or segment assets: HeE
Additions of property, RENF -
plant and equipment BE R E 47762 8920 24,076 69 80,827
Additions of intangible assets NEEWEE 137,022 - 36,966 = 173,988
Additions of goodwill RERE 28,321 - - - 28,321
Depreciation of property, ER
plant and equipment BELERETE 12570 19,458 6,462 190 38,680
Amortisation of intangible assets BYEESE 111,749 - 45,197 = 156,946
Amortisation of land use rights THFE RS 1,149 287 450 = 1,886
Allowance for (reversal of) RN (RE) 58
bad and doubtful debts, net 336 (427) - - 91)
(Reversal of) write-down of 75 (B HR
inventories (3,218) 11,767 6,052 - 14,601
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZHF+-A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (coNTINUED) 7.

2 EER (&)

Revenue from major products

Sale of mobile handset solutions

Sale of LCD modules
Sale of wireless communication
modules and modems

Information about major customers

HEBBFHRARTT R
HERABBNMEL
HERBMER

R BB

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of total sales of the Group, each
deriving revenue from all operating segments, are as follows:

Customer A

=EA

1 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total

revenue of the Group.

The customer is within same mobile phone technology

industry in the PRC.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue and non-current assets are substantially
located in the PRC, the country of domicile from which the
group entities derive revenue and hold assets. Accordingly, no

further analysis is presented.

REETEERHRA

2010 2009

—g-85 —PING

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT AT

3,170,208 1,834,995

142,129 204,664

721,694 943,873

4,034,031 2,983,532
BREERFHEN

RIBEFEEAREAHEREEIB10%NEP
WA BREMEEENBNT

2010 2009
—E-BF —TTAFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
817,035 N/A(T@EH)!

! MR A AL EMABHETR10% KA T

ZEFPEBHER —BEFREMES -

AEBBRARIFFRBDEETZRATE - IR
SEELEWAMBEEEZMER - At - I

B2 —F DT
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z—ZE+_-_A=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME

HAWA

Refund of VAT (Note 1) BEBRN (et 1)
Government grants (Note 2) BATEE WA (HaE2)
Interest income earned on RITAEERIRE 2

bank balances AMEMA
Rental income (Less: outgoings GiEEAL N

of HK$1,077,000
(2009: HK$402,000))
Others

Notes:

(1)

(2)

Hith

Shanghai Simcom Limited (“Shanghai Simcom”), Shanghai
Speedcomm Technology Limited (“Shanghai Speedcomm”) and
Shanghai Simcom Wireless Solutions Limited (“Simcom Wireless”),
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, are engaged in the
business of distribution of self-developed and produced software.
Under the current PRC tax regulation, they are entitled to a refund
of VAT paid for sales of self-developed software in the PRC.

The amount includes HK$35,817,000 (2009: HK$27,967,000)
unconditional government grants granted to encourage for the
Group’s research and developments activities in the PRC.

In addition, the Group received government grants of
HK$27,648,000 and HK$11,400,000 respectively during the
year ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 towards the cost of
development on wireless communication modules and mobile
handset modules in Shenyang. The amounts are transferred
to other income to match actual expenditure used in research
and development activities and HK$29,722,000 (2009:
HK$19,141,000) was recognised in the profit or loss during the
year. As at 31 December 2010, an amount of HK$27,349,000
(2009: HK$29,423,000) remains to be unamortised and included
in other payables.

(R + &xHi 1,077,000 BT
(ZZZNE : 402,000 7E7T))

Bt -

2010 2009
—e-®5 -TTNG
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
18,588 14,224
65,539 47,108
8,994 5,157
11,101 2,392
2,473 5,996
106,695 74,877

ARmRlz2BENBRRFEBESRM(LE)AE
RAR([LEFERE])  LERLEEARMNE
BRAR ([ LEBLE]D REABESRR(LE)
BRAR([HAERE]D DEEHHEATRER
EENEM - BIBERERTZRBESR - £FE
MHEBTREZEMEANZEEFIZAR
B o

1 FE B R SR 2 B IE B A 35,817,000 74
T(ZZETHE : 27,967,000587T) + ASBIARE
BN BT -

o REEREBEE-_ZT—TER-_TTNAF
TZA=T—HIEFED BIEF BT 27,648,000
7 7T 1 11,400,000 7T A 7L b5 5 3% A2 @ AT
B R FRAIREBERAOIEERA - ¢BEEHE
BEHMBAURAREZDNERRS - M
29,722,000 ;t( = T T L F : 19,141,000
) ERFERNERREBZ - R=ZT—TF+=A
=+—H8 ' —%27,349,000/8 T ( — B2 N4 ¢
29,423,000/ 7T ) B R IR AR B HI B 5t A K
fth FEAT R ©
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IR M ISIRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZHF+-A=+—HLFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HitW=KkEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Recycling of gain on disposal of HERHHEIRE
available-for-sale investments ez Was - 25,366
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZ
plant and equipment B E MR EE (74) (45)
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) FRHNE W (B51E) 22,963 (1,928)
Gain from changes in fair values REWENTFEES RS
of investment properties 15,310 4013
Allowance for bad and doubtful RIZRREAE (ML)
debts (Note) (11,051) =
Reversal of allowance for bad and RERBERED (H:7)
doubtful debts (Note) 411 -
27,559 27,406
Note: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of HK$336,000 and Hfat : R 58 BR % #5336,0007% 7T & R £ BR £ 1% % [
reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts of HK$427,000 427 0008 Tt ABE_ETAE+_A=1+—
are included in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 BIEFERNTHRAS -
December 2009.
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. @E KA
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Interests on bank borrowings wholly HARAFTRNEHER

repayable within five years ZIRITIEE R E 10,288 3,061
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z—ZE+_-_A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

11.

EENEEME

Directors’ emoluments

The emolument paid or payable to each of the directors were

ESME
AERERCNAENZMESIT

as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BZE-E-Z5+-A=+-ALEE
Retirement
benefits
scheme
Salaries and Share-based contributions Total
Directors’ fees  allowances Bonus  payments EREF  emoluments
EEHe FMRES L URGBHER BEGE “Me
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET TET TET TET
(Note)
(Hizt)
Executive directors YTES
Ms Yeung Man Ying )¢ N - - - - - -
Mr Wong Cho Tung THERLE - - - - - -
Mr Wong Hei, Simon FREE - 553 - - - 553
Mr Zhang Jianping wETFLE - 1,106 1,382 1,423 64 3,975
Ms Tang Rongrong ERmLL - 484 346 541 10 1,381
Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard  [RiZ& %4 - 1,300 - 526 60 1,886
Independent BYEHTES
non-executive directors
Mr Liu Hing Hung BEIERE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Xie Linzhen BRI AE 156 - - - - 156
Mr Zhuang Xingfang ETARE 156 - - - - 156
468 3,443 1,728 2,490 134 8,263

Note: Incentive performance bonus for the year ended 31 December

2010 was determined by the remuneration committee having

regard to the performance of directors and the Group’s operating

results.

Bit - BEZ-THE+_A=+-RALEFEZRAE
BIEARBFHNERELEREFTZRIARAE
B2 EEEEMETE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZHF+-A=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

11. EEREEMS (&)

Directors’ emoluments (CONTINUED)

Executive directors HITES
Ms Yeung Man Ying B L L
Mr Wong Cho Tung THEREE
Mr Wong Hei, Simon TEEAE
Mr Zhang Jianping Rl AE
Ms Tang Rongrong ERmzL

Mr Chan Tat Wing, Richard ~ BRiZ&R%E4
Non-executive directors BTES

Mr Tsang Hen Loon, LEELE
Raymond (Note 2) (fiz2)
Mr Wong Sun (Note 2) EREEMH2)

Independent BIUEHTES
non-executive directors

Mr Liu Hing Hung BEETE
Mr Wang Chengwei (Note 3) YEES &£ (A£3)
Mr Xie Linzhen (Note 3) ~ BSHRSEAE (M523
Mr Zhuang Xingfang EThRE

EEMe (B

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BECZTNGT-A=1T—RIFE

Retirement

benefits

scheme
Salaries and Share-based  contributions Total
Directors’ fees  allowances Bonus  payments  R{KER  emoluments
EXe  HMRER AL ARGNF EHEIRE aHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FHT FHT FHT

(Note 1)
(Fiit1)

- 547 - - - 547
- 730 228 201 59 1,218
- 342 228 158 26 754
- 1,300 - 136 60 1,49
126 - - - 3 129
156 - - - - 156
11 - - - - 11
146 - - - - 146
156 - - - - 156
595 2919 456 495 148 4613

105
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_Z—ZE+_-_A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (coNTINUED)

11. EEREEME (&)

Directors’ emoluments (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(1) Incentive performance bonus for the year ended 31 December
2009 was determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of directors and the Group’s operating

results.

(2) Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Raymond and Mr Wong Sun resigned on 31

March 2009.

(3) Mr Wang Chengwei resigned on 25 January 2009 and Mr Xie
Linzhen was appointed as independent non-executive director on

25 January 2009.

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included three (2009: four)
directors for the year ended 31 December 2010, whose
emoluments are included in the above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2009: one) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Bonus TE4L
Share-based payments
Retirement benefits scheme
contributions

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

e NoRh

BARBAD 155K
RIREHEF IR

E=ME (&)
Bt

1) HE-FTAG+-A=+—HIEEZRRE
BEARHFHERELERESTZRARASE

(2 EFBEELE EREER_ZZNF=A=+—
HBHE -

o

() EHHEAER_ZTAF-A_tTHHERE
HBIREER —SENE-A-_THHEZES
B IFITES ©

EEME
BE_Z-ZF+_A=+—HLFE A%
REFMALBE=2(ZFThF IR E
FOHEMESEHERNEX BT R (ZFTAH
F B EREFMALZHSOT

2010 2009
—s-%F  —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T
968 274

1,405 228

536 227

127 28

3,036 757

% 2 6 1E A T AR5 R -

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENE

Number of Number of

employees employees

BEAE EE A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T - 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 #& T2 1,500,000 & 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 #7T% 2,000,000 AT 1 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors waived

any emoluments for both years.

REE  AEBEYRAEMNESELARRSH
AL ZRHEABE - ERFERBFMARE
I3 5l R 5 N AN B (B [ 9 55 2 AF 2 AEAAT R
T8 AR E S HMEMSRIBERBERAE - 1
ZMEMBEEEMEL IS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

12. TAXATION

12. i1

107

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
Under (over) provision in
PRC Enterprise Income Tax
in prior years (Note)
Deferred tax credit (Note 21)

Income tax expense for the year

B SR

BEFERECEMEH
TR (%) Bk (Aat)

EIERRAT A (BaE21)

REFZFEH

2010 2009
—e-®5 -—TTNG
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT AT
28,286 25,598
1,788 (8,771)
(894) (1,825)
29,180 15,002

Note: Overprovision in PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year ended
31 December 2009 represented the additional tax deductions
approved by the tax authority on research and development costs
incurred in the prior years by certain subsidiaries which were
classified as “Hi-New Technology Enterprises”.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for
both years as the Company and its subsidiaries have no
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises
are exempted from PRC income tax for the two years starting
from their first profit-making year, followed by a 50% tax relief
for the next three years. Shanghai Simcom is classified as
Key Production Enterprise and is entitled to use an applicable
tax rate of 10% for each of the year ended 31 December
2010 and 2009 respectively. Two other wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, Shanghai Suncom Logistics
Limited (“Suncom Logistics”) and Max Vision (Shanghai)
Limited (“Shanghai Max Vision”) are entitled to adopt a tax
rate of 22% (2009: 20%) because they were registered in
the area of Shanghai Wai Gao Qiao Free Trade Zone /&b
=B IR FLE . Shanghai Sunrise Simcom Limited (“Shanghai
Sunrise Simcom”) and Smartwireless Technology Limited
are classified as New and High Technology Enterprise and
are entitled to adopt a tax rate of 15% for both years. The
tax charge provided has been made after taking into account
these tax incentive.

Bit - BE_ETAE+ A=+ HILFETERE
FRSTUBREBRRA R E RATILES THES
DA BEFEPTEETE KA Z BRI E
B ZEMBRRESRR [RHRMEE] -

RRARBREMNEBARLENTEELEM
FERBURN - Fib W BB R EFEELEERN
SHEE -

RBHBEZ AR RER - £ BEM A
BEECEZDEMNBARE B EENFEL
FHRE - AR RN ECERGEH - BR
ZFRATREEMBEHEFELER - BE_T
—ZTERZZFETENFTA=T—HILEFES
FoLBRBBARRNR [EMEERE]
WHEEZH10% AERBRE - ARBEMMRZE
MEBRR BZEEIEEF AR AR ([EEH
B REHAET(LB)ARQA( LEE
M) BRNE LB R BRBREM - EtA]
B22% (ZFFNF : 20%) HEGNEERS
B bBREFEREFRRERAR( LE
RERERE]) ML RELS SRRER DRI
R EHMhE] AEmEFEREER
15% BERHE - RIAFMBED T RZER
BEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-_A=+—HLFE

12. TAXATION (coNTINUED) 12. #i1E (&)
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on RIE(PE A REMBEIAZRERE) ([1REFT
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation BEE]) REEMGSEANEMMAE] - ==
Regulation of the EIT Law, Enterprise Income Tax rate of ZNF—A—BRBAEEMNE THENBA A
the Group’s certain subsidiaries in the PRC increased from TEFTSHAE 15% EE S 25%  ANE B H) A
15% to 25% progressively from 1 January 2008 onwards. MEARRERESHERLI0% E25% (=T
The relevant tax rates for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC NE - 10% £20%) °

ranged from 10% to 25% (2009: 10% to 20%).

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit N ERIAR S BAR S W 3R P PR 2 BR AT
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as RAERRAT ¢
follows:
2010 2009
—E-=F ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit before taxation FrE% B Al 266,804 148,622
Taxation at the PRC income ER B SEFTE TR 25%
tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%) AHE(ZETNFE : 25%) 66,701 37,156
Tax effect of expenses not TR 2 s 2 Bl o 28
deductible for tax purpose 10,858 14,276
Tax effect of income not taxable BRI WA 2 TS 52
for tax purpose (10,907) (17,791)
Tax effect of tax losses RIERTAIFETIB 2 B s 2
not recognised 7,141 4,788
Under (over) provision in BEFETT (BE) #E
respect of prior years 1,788 (8,771)
Utilisation of tax losses previously BAERER 2 A AR EE
not recognised (22,698) (8,623)
Effect of tax exemptions granted FEHBRAR SRR 2 E
to PRC subsidiaries (12,664) -
Income tax on concessionary rate REBEMEGFTE 2B (11,039) (6,033)

Taxation for the year AEFEEFHTE 29,180 15,002
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HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

13. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13.

109

Profit for the year is arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’'s remuneration
Amortisation of intangible
assets (included in cost of sales)
Less: Amount capitalised
in development costs

Amortisation of land use rights

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Less: Amount capitalised
in development costs

Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts
Reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts
Write-down of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Costs of inventories
recognised as expenses
Staff costs:
Directors’ emoluments (note 11)
Other staff costs
— Salaries and other benefits
— Retirement benefits
scheme contributions
— Share-based payments

Less: Amount capitalised
in development costs

AERZEMND R GEA) -

Gl

B EE#E GFARERAE)

B EEAMEFREKA

T b {0 PR 55

W - BB LREITE

B BEAMEFEA

RIEIREAE
RIEZIRE R D
TFEMUR (FEASHERKA)
ERAERAZMWFERAR
BIRRA :

B (FIsE11)
EAh 8 TR A
—TE&REMEF

—RAAE A I K

— BABHA 3R

B BEAMEFEA

A FE R

2010 2009
—e-®5 -—TTNG
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT AT
1,950 1,750
168,788 156,946
(1,188) (2,309)
167,600 154,637
2,290 1,886
43,540 38,680
(3,130) (4,756)
40,410 33,924
11,051 336
(411) (427)
6,513 14,601
3,505,281 2,667,164
8,263 4,613
238,629 171,417
47,820 34,322
14,076 8,764
308,788 219,116
(126,567) (82,763)
182,221 136,353
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. RE
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T3t
Dividends recognised as RERERBED RS
distribution during the year:
2008 Final dividend, BN NFRARS —
paid — HK1.0 cent per share B 1.0 Bl - 15,175
2009 Final dividend, BN NFRAKE —
paid — HK2.2 cents per share FAZ 2.2 71l 34,415 =
Interim dividend, B HARR B — A% 2.5 I
paid — HK2.5 cents per share (ZZZNF : 0.8 781L)
(2009: HKO.8 cents) 39,195 12,173
73,610 27,348
Final dividend, proposed — HK3.0 EEAHIRE — &8 3.0 Bl
cents per share (ZZZNEF - k2.2 7H10)
(2009: HK2.2 cents) (Note) iz 47,089 33,632
Note: The final dividend of HK3.0 cents (2009: HK2.2 cents) per share Hiat - BZEERINARERESRIOBIL(ZEZA

has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by
the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

F - B2.2781l)  AEBERREREBRBFX

Bt - TAMEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. EREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share AN BIR% B FE (R AR B AR M A T THR AT
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the HIEFTE
following data:
2010 2009
—E2-FfF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Earnings 27|
Earnings for the purposes of basic FTEERERREERF
and diluted earnings per share LB (RFEEARRT
(profit for the year attributable AR PE(R R F)
to owners of the Company) 233,349 128,975
'000 ‘000
F B T
Number of shares BHEE
Weighted average number of STESRERAER 2
ordinary shares for the purpose TR DN 92X
of basic earnings per share 1,556,040 1,520,869
Effect of dilutive potential BIEESEIRGD 2 02 — BIRE
shares — share options weighted STEEREERR 2
average number of ordinary AR INAE T £
shares for the propose of
diluted earnings per share 66,399 -
1,622,439 1,520,869
The denominators used were the same as those detailed FiEAzrBE EMBE—STNF+=A
above for both basic and diluted earnings per share for the —+—HUFESREARBERNMERE
year ended 31 December 2009. AER]
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year HRARBIEREZ (TEEYRRZFEERR
ended 31 December 2009 did not assume the exercise of the ZEHHE  HBEZZENF T ZA=1—
Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of BIEFEZ2BRESRF 2 FETEREAR
those options was higher than the average market price for A MARITERBRE 2 T(E -

shares for that year.
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BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

- BREWF

FAIR VALUE ~NEE
At 1 January 2009 RZZZNF—H—H

Transfer from land use rights FR - b {50 PR A e 4

Transfer from property,
plant and equipment

Increase in fair value

recognised in profit or loss

Exchange differences PERESR
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+=-RA=+—H
Increase in fair value RIBETER 2 A FEE N

recognised in profit or loss
Exchange differences ERZER

At 31 December 2010

The Group’s investment properties which are situated at SIM
Technology Building, No. 633 Jinzhong Road, Changning District,
Shanghai, the PRC and are held under medium-term leases.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2010 and 2009 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited, independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group. Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited is a member of the Institute of Valuers
and has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
the discounted cash flow projections based on estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of existing lease
and reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent
what knowledgeable willing parties would assume about rental
income for future leases in the light of current conditions,
using discount rates that reflect current market assessments
of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged
investment properties having a fair value of approximately
HK$36,303,000 (2009: nil) to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

B - BE MR

WIB TR ATER

HK$’000
THIT

16,396
91,360

109,302

4,013
146

221,217

15,310
7,305

243,832

AEBUNPELERERSEK63IFRA
RECRE 2 B METIRIEH BBEORE -

AEBREMVENR_FT—FTER_FTTNF
TZA=T-BNAVERRENEEERE
HB & B R E XM ER IR E ET AR
BRABNFBETHHBEZR - BBHTEE
AHEERERARIRAEMIBEEE - £XF
RETEAREEEFEMINKR - [HED2
ZERAKR S REMN A A MIEH TR
ReRnERAZER  YERBEEENERTIAR
BERBBEBENRRSF  MZERRAKREK
BN BRERI #1770 B RTER T @ SR REE
S WARIRRR - PIER BT E R TS
HERRAT R TR REREDE AT M B A
At o

AEBEEASLEHEENABELERRES
HENBERENOME - REAAHERAG
ERDBRARIBEREYE -

RZZE—ZFE+_A=+—0 rEEKE
MEE A FELR 536,303,000 T (ZEF N
FE)DEER  EAAEEES RIRT
BEZIER -
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IRE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 1% - BERRE

Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant
Construction improvements fixtures and Motor
in progress  Buildings HEME  REBR  machinery vehicles Total
ERIR ; B2 % REE BEREE "B @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL THL THL T TEL

CoSsT KA
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEENE—R—H 52,079 144493 3915 171,661 28 367 5,036 405,551
Exchange differences ExREZ 1 1,738 40 1,512 252 39 3,582
Additions AE 17,670 51,792 831 9,383 264 897 80,827
Acquired on acquisition WEMB ARG

of subsidiaries - - - 1,085 - 80 1,165
Transfer LE3 (52,605) 52,605 = = = = =
Revaluation gain on transfer ~ B ZREY R

to investment properties MEf I - 27,496 - - = 27,496
Transfer to investment ERERANE

properties - (110,995) - - - - (110,995)
Disposals HE - - - (442) - - (442)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE

+-A=t+-H 17,145 167,129 4,786 183,19 283873 6,052 407,184
Exchange differences EERER 541 5,278 138 5,766 911 175 12,309
Additions NE 42173 104 163 12,859 67,280 1,830 124,409
Transfer i (22,641) 20390 - - 2,51 - -
Disposals HE - - (416) (917) - - (1,333)
At 31 December 2010 RZT-TF
+-A=1-H 37,218 192,901 4671 200,907 99,315 8,057 543,069
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. % ~ BB KRR (&)

(CONTINUED)
Equipment,
furniture
Leasehold and Plant
Construction improvements fixtures and Motor
in progress Buildings HEME  REHM  machinery vehicles Total
ERIR gF %8 REE RERHES RE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T THr T
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNE-A—H - 12,742 3915 85,530 8,780 3,178 114,145
Exchange differences EXxzZ - 113 40 739 79 24 995
Charge for the year KEEHE - 8,759 171 26,544 2,507 699 38,680
Revaluation gain on transfer ~ EEZE AR
to investment properties OEERYEN - (1,693) - - - = (1,693)
Eliminated on disposals R EREH - - - (397) - - (397)
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+-A=t-H - 19,921 4,126 112,416 11,366 3901 151,730
Exchange differences ExZR = 799 121 4,026 555 126 5,627
Charge for the year AEEHE - 8181 225 24,793 9,408 933 43,540
Eliminated on disposals BRI - - (416) (801) - - (1,217)
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-2F
+=A=1+-H - 28901 4,056 140,434 21,329 4960 199,680
CARRYING VALUES RAE
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-2F
+-A=t+-H 37,218 164,000 615 60,473 77,986 3,097 343,389
At 31 December 2009 RZZENE
+-A=t-H 17,145 147 208 660 70,783 17,507 2,151 265,454
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—FFFEHR

IRE IS MAR T
For the year ended 31 December 2010

B=

—EEEt-—fP=t+—HIIFEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BEKRRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Property, plant and equipment other than construction Y BB RS E TR E S MR T A FE R
in progress are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the .
following rates per annum:
Buildings gF 5%
Leasehold improvements THEYHEEE The shorter of the lease terms
and b5 years
THEHR R 5 FHIR 2 &
Equipment, furniture and fixtures — &f& - R NREE 20%-25%
Plant and machinery [R5 MBS 10%
Motor vehicles B 20%
The buildings of the Group are situated in the PRC and AR B 2 AT A B I R R 7 LAFR BRR 4075
located on land use rights under medium-term leases. The ErifERAE s T F o EEIREFTEELRN
construction in progress mainly represented buildings under R ERER 28 o
construction which are situated in the PRC.
As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged buildings RZF-—FF+-A=+—H" $E@Z$§$
having a carrying value of approximately HK$75,688,000 B A PB4 575,688,000 7T (— TE N4 :
(2009: nil) to secure general banking facilities granted to the /)BT - EARSEEG —RBITHE
Group. IR o
18. LAND USE RIGHTS 18. T ih{E FAHE
HK$'000
FAT
cosT ﬁxzzp:
At 1 January 2009 —ETNF—H—H 77,909
Additions iﬁﬁ 38,664
Revaluation gain on transfer B A R
to investment properties el 58,941
Transfer to investment properties BRI B (91,360)
Charge for the year REEIE (1,886)
Exchange differences fER=R 691
At 31 December 2009 R_ZEZEAF+=_A=+—8H 82,959
Transfer from deposits paid F -t RS N 2 i o e i
for land use rights 11,678
Charge for the year AEEINE (2,290)
Exchange differences fER=R 3,761
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+=-_A=+—H 96,108

The land use rights of the Group are held under medium-term
lease in the PRC and amortised over the term of the lease of

50 years.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has pledged land
use rights having a net book value of approximately
HK$15,464,000 (2009: nil) to secure general banking

facilities granted to the Group.

AEER Bz T3 fF AR B+ A
B WHR B0 FHAF L

R-ZE—ZTFE+-_A=+—H ZAE@zLit
{F R BREFE ) 5 15,464,000 T (ZEF
NE - E)EREF  EAAEEES—RIR
TREZER -

115



116

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M IBIRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

19. GOODWILL 19. BE

COST AND CARRYING VALUES
At 1 January 2009

R N BREE

At 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to the cash generating units (“CGUs”) of sale
of mobile handset solutions. The recoverable amount of
the CGUs has been determined based on a value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a
5-years period and discount rate of 17.27% for both years.
The cash flows beyond the 5-years period are extrapolated
having a steady 3% growth rate for both years. The growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry. A key
assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
growth rate, which is determined based on past performance
and management’s expectations for the market development.
No impairment on goodwill noted. Management believes that
any reasonably possible change in any of the assumption
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of the above
CGUs to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
above CGUs.

RZZEZNF—-—HA—H
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries  UX BB A & FTEE

HK$'000
THTT

28,321

RZBBNF+=A=1—AR
— = FTE+—-A=+—H

28,321

HRERANE - BESOEEBHFERER
NRZAGELBM((REELEM]) - BEE
REeEF SN2 W EEEERIEEREE
HET - BRFESTANEREREZ MR
HREWERRETR  MEFHRLFMN
NFEEM 17.27 % HBEIRE - 8B 5 F MR
ERBHEMEEMFARENIVER - K
18 E = RIER R TR RIBRIANRRETTE 19
ERREEX - —AREREBEFENBERRR
EREBERAMNEEEHMSERBENE
HHEER - WEELBERE - EEEREE
AN ENBRRE TSR MR eELE
{7 4R ERER A | 3R & B A BT Y AT R W &
B
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IRE MR

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 20. B EE
Licence  Development Technical Customer
fee costs know-how contracts Total
FARE RERA SERM EFEH @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAL TAT TAT TAT

COST A
At 1 January 2009 R_EENF—A—H 68,349 469,358 71,339 - 609,046
Additions ANE 6,573 120,181 - - 126,754
Acquired on acquisition WEMB A RS

of subsidiaries 9,867 9,853 - 27514 47 234
Exchange differences ExzR 409 3,670 = = 4,079
Write-off s - (54,839) - - (54,839)
At 31 December 2009 R-EENF+-_A=1+—H 85,198 548,223 71,339 27,514 732,274
Additions NE 6,699 157,375 - - 164,074
Exchange differences EREZR 1,822 15,329 - - 17,151
Write-off HisA - (156,840) = = (156,840)
At 31 December 2010 R_Z—ZTF+-A=+—H 93,719 564,087 71,339 27,514 756,659
AMORTISATION B
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEENE—F—H 47,025 389,633 10,790 - 447 448
Charge for the year KEFHH 12,025 134,830 10,091 = 156,946
Exchange differences ExzR 287 2,963 - - 3,250
Write-off 6| - (54,839) = - (54,839)
At 31 December 2009 RZBENF+-A=1—H 59,337 472 587 20,881 - 552,805
Charge for the year AEEEH 10,173 139,354 10,090 9171 168,788
Exchange differences ExzR 1,367 13,086 = = 14,453
Write-off HhsA - (156,840) = = (156,840)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-ZF+-A=1+-H 70,877 468,187 30,971 9,171 579,206
CARRYING AMOUNT EHE
At 31 December 2010 W_E-Z4+_A=1—H 22,842 95,900 40,368 18,343 177453
At 31 December 2009 W_EENE+-A=1—H 25,861 75,636 50,458 27,514 179,469
Development costs are internally generated. License fee, HEKABANTEL - NEBHFAZEER =
technical know-how and customer contracts of the Group BRMEEEAABEEE = -

were acquired from third parties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HE-—ZE-—TE+-_F=+—HItEE

20. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (coNTINUED)

20.

BIVEE (&

The intangible assets have finite useful lives. Intangible
assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the following

period:

Licence fee
Development costs
Technical know-how
Customer contracts

21. DEFERRED TAX

1-5 years

9 months-2 years
5-8 years

3 years

21.

BEEERFHAAR - BREENERZX

AT BRI 5

AR
PSR
2H KM
BEPaK

ELEHR A

1&=54

9fEHZE2F

5E8F
Bl

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movement thereon, during

the current and prior years.

At 1 January 2009

Acquisitions of subsidiaries
(Note 31)

Exchange differences

Credit (charge) to profit or loss

Charge to properties revaluation reserve

At 31 December 2009
Exchange differences
(Charge) credit to profit or loss

At 31 December 2010

RZEZNE—-F—H
WEHBAR (#:231)

ExzE
STAGIRE) Ba
MRENXERER

R-FEAFTA=T-R
Ex22
R () B

RZE-ZF+-A=1—H

INTRRAFERBEFE - AAEEER

TERERA (BB EENEGHED -

Revaluation

of buildings

and land use

Write-down  rights transferred

Development  of inventories  to investment
cost and trade properties
capitalised receivables BFRIH Intangible
[=5-v:14 FEREH ERRERY assets Total
BEEA  EZRMMAE BRERENE Bl EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL THL TATL TR
(10,966) 3410 (2.971) = (10,527)
- - - (3,268) (3,268)
97) 28 27) = (%)
2,828 - (1,003) - 1,825
= = (21,609) = (21,609)
(8,235) 3438 (25,610) (3,268) (33,675)
(282) 3% (837) = (775)
(1,038) 5,760 (3,828) - 894
(9,555) 9,592 (30,325) (3,268) (33,556)
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B=

—EEEt-—fP=t+—HIIFEE

21. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

21. IEFEHIE ()

For the purpose of consolidated statement of financial position
presentation, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets FEFRIAE EE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBBE

At 31 December 2010, other than the deferred tax assets
and liabilities mentioned above, subsidiaries of the Group
had unused tax losses of approximately HK$75,365,000
(2009: HK$137,593,000) available for offset against future
profit. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams of those subsidiaries.
Included in unused tax losses of HK$58,484,000 (2009:
HK$131,831,000) that will expire by 2015 (2009: 2014).
Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2009 onwards. Deferred taxation
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$498,685,000 (2009: HK$318,569,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REIEREMBMRRME - & TREREE
EREEE T o AT st i 753k & ArE
ZIRTERIBERER Z AT

2010 2009
-85  —TIAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fia FHIT
9,592 3,438
(43,148) (37,113)
(33,556) (33,675)

NR-B—FTE+_-A=+—8 B LiliEE
MIBEERABEBI KE@W%“WH@J
R TE 518 49 75,365,000/ 7T ( T AL 4 -
137,593,000 7T ) A (K SHAR OB A © BRI 5%
LB R BRI m AR A AT TR - AR R
RIETIEE E - AEFAFIEEER 58,484,000
/ETI:( TTNF 131831000%71)?1—;5/\
—RFE(ZTTNEF —PY4E) = e
m;éiﬁ%éiﬁfﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂ%@ o

*E%Fﬂplmiﬁﬁ SHE B=ZETNE—A—

» SR BB A B BT EEUE A 2 R A AL B
,,f%ﬂzﬁﬁium IRE ISR AR A B AP BRT
J& 2 B R 51 1 Y B 2= EE 498,685,000 745 7T
(ZZEZ N4 : 318,569,00078 7T ) 1 HH IE FE 4
ERE - REAASE A EH %S T2
BEEIRRE - ARZEERERLARAERD
KTHL%@C'
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BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 22.

Available-for-sale investments comprise: AJ{ftH &% E BIE :

Unlisted equity securities in the PRC AR B Z K itz E S
The above unlisted equity investments represent investments

in unlisted equity securities issued by a private entity
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that

the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

AfHERE
2010 2009
—e-®5 -TTNG
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
15,876 -

b 3F ETRER BRI E R B ML
M—ELABRBETHNIF ETERAES - IS
AEAFEMGANHBERK - RARNESER
RERFETEASEAE - RIEREEHRR
BRASREREME & ©

23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2010 2009
—ZT-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Raw materials R 347,536 351,560
Work in progress EEH 30,159 4,603
Finished goods RUAK B 62,318 54,927
440,013 411,090
24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 24. BEARNEHEWE
FOR SALES
HK$'000
Tt
At 1 January 2009 and RZZEZNF—H—HK
31 December 2009 —EThF+=ZA=1+—H -
Transfer from deposits AT T ERAERNZS
paid for land use rights 97,546
Additions = 9,815
Exchange differences [EEZERE 3,080
At 31 December 2010 R-_Z—ZTF+_-_H=+—H 110,441
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B=

24.

—EEEt-—fP=t+—HIIFEE

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALES (coNTINUED)

24.

EELEE R/ ESC )

25.

The properties under development for sales of the Group are
situated in the PRC and located on land use rights under
medium-term leases. The Group is in the process of obtaining
the land use rights certificates as at 31 December 2010.
Legal opinion is provided by the Group’s legal advisor that the
Group has already obtained the rights to obtain the legal title
of the land and has the rights to develop the properties on the
related land in accordance with the applicable PRC laws.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

25.

AREB R TR HE AT B R A ERIR
AR AN A T EREN L E e R-F—
FE+A=1T—R  AEELERRIME
FEEEBIZD - K’ilﬁﬁiﬂi%ﬁ}%ﬁi\ﬁ’ﬂii
EBERRA  AEEELRS LS EMERE

EER - BRERRERT I&éﬁéﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁi
R

ﬂﬂ/)lbﬁ%l’ﬂmﬁg

The normal credit period taken on sales of goods is 0-90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, notes
and bills receivables presented based on the invoice date at
the end of the reporting period:

0-30 days TE30K

31-60 days 260X

61-90 days 61 290K

91-180 days 91 £ 180K

Over 180 days B8 180 &

Less: Accumulated allowances B BETEE

Trade receivables JEURE 5 8RR

Notes and bills receivables — JEW R AR EE —
within 30 days (Note) 30 KA (K1)

Note: Notes and bills receivables represent the promissory notes issued

by banks received from the customers.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed twice a
year. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts which is based on the evaluation of collectability and
age analysis of accounts and on management’s judgment
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each client.

HEEMN—REEMATEOX -

AT REKREZENR - BREBRREERER
BHIR 2 MR AR Rl D -

2010 2009

—®-BF —TTNE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH FHT

103,747 94,140

1,689 6,764

655 14,118

2,126 564

23,882 36,455

132,099 152,041

(21,679) (10,486)

110,420 141,555

124,304 75,173

Wit BT R AR P BT R M2 08

i -
REMTAFMESH - AREFEEEEFZ

ERERNEEEFPNEERE KL TEPZ
EEREGFRIMR - "EEERRERE
wHIERR  ZEBRRERE 2 I REEE
Mo MAREEES i (BREREP
ZIEERTR SRR AL ER) I E
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BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

25. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

25.

HitRBEMEE (&)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$11,892,000 (2009:
HK$32,840,000) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss
because they were either subsequently settled as at the date
of this report or there was no historical default of payments
by the respective customers. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 216 days (2009: 246 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired

0-30 days ZTE30K
31-60 days 31 260X
61-90 days 61 290K
91-180 days 91180k
181-365 days 181 £365kK
Total “aEt

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year FHEER
Impairment losses FIEW AR KR Z
recognised on receivables BB 1E
Exchange differences EHER
Impairment losses reversed REE R D

Balance at end of the year FRER

REEZ RIWE SRFERAR S REAER
11,892,000 7t ( ZZZ L4 : 32,840,000
T0) WEARSK - s B R B AL E
WEBBERBIERE  ALEHRRCRERE
BERMBHELFTPIEFRNLE - XEH
I L% FREBRFTA TR - ZFRKES
R FHBRERR2I6 R(Z T TN F : 246
x) e

SBHMERBENERE S R ZRR

2010 2009

s —TENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THTT

195 550

191 102

293 5,556

4,072 -

7,141 26,632

11,892 32,840
RERE2EE

2010 2009

—B-FF —TENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

10,486 10,484

11,051 336

553 93

(411) (427)

21,679 10,486
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HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

25.

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(CONTINUED)

25.

HitRBEmEE (&)

26.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance
of HK$13,794,000 (2009: HK$3,268,000) which have
either been placed under liquidation or in severe financial
difficulties. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and are
recoverable on demand. Deposits mainly represented trade
deposits paid to third parties.

At 31 December 2010, included in the trade receivables and
notes receivables, HK$14,068,000 (2009: HK$20,220,000)
and HK$41,604,000 (2009: nil) respectively are denominated
in USD, which are not denominated in the functional currency
of the respective group entities.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

26.

R A SR ERRERNBKE ZRRAF
#R%A 13,794,000 7T (ZE T NF : 3,268,000
BIL)  RERFEBALERNERIMAA
ERE TSR EE - AN E I 51 F S R
S -

Hip RS EIER - AEFE RN ZREFE
B-BETERENE=THNEZRE -

RZZ—ZF+-_A=+—8 BRESKE
FEEBRZET - BRENERTIEZIRER
14,068,000/ 7T (= F T /L4 : 20,220,00078
J0) K 41,604,000 (ZFFTNF: F) &
BRI EAREAFR B MEEBE

%?&ﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬁ&ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ

The bank balances and cash of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB, Hong Kong dollars and USD. The
bank balances receive interest at an average rate of 0.8%
(2009: 0.7%) per annum. Included in the bank balances
and cash and pledged bank deposits was an amount of
HK$999,885,000 (2009: HK$748,971,000) denominated in
RMB, which is not freely convertible into other currencies.

The Group's bank deposits of HK$616,828,000 (2009:
HK$329,114,000) as at 31 December 2010 were pledged
to secure the short-term generate banking facilities granted
by banks. The bank deposits will mature on clearance of the
letter of credit.

At 31 December 2010, bank balances of HK$148,616,000
(2009: HK$104,099,000) are denominated in USD, which
are not denominated in the functional currency of the
respective group entities.

REBZRITERNASTEAARE - B
TN ETTEHE © RITEBRIZFIHEME0.8%
(ZZTNF :07%) T8 - RITEHRRS
AR EBERRITEARABE —BARERIE
999,885,000 7T ( == Z L4 : 748,971,000
BIT)  REFA A ERERSEMER -

RNEE 2 R1T1FE 6168280008 L (—FTE
L 329,114,000 L) R=ZE—ZTF+ =
B=+—8FREH  LUESRTRE ZEH
—RIRTTRE o IRITIF SR E R BLEERE
/ﬁg o

N-B—TE+-A=+—08  UETHED
$R1T 458 5 148,616,000/ L ( — BE AL 4F -
104,099,000/ 7T) * A RAFKIENL IEASEE A A
ZEEMNEEEEE -
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27. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

7. Ht B EE

Trade and notes payables, other payables, deposit received
and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purposes and ongoing costs.

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding
for trade purchases. The normal credit period taken for trade
purchases is 30-60 days. An aged analysis of the Group’s
trade and notes payables at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice date is as follows:

0-30 days TE30K
31-60 days 31 260X
61-90 days 61 90K
Over 90 days HBEI0 K

At 31 December 2010, included in the trade payables,
HK$291,732,000 (2009: HK$88,866,000) are denominated
in USD, which are not denominated in the functional currency
of the respective group entities.

As 31 December 2010, included in other payables,
HK$27,349,000 (2009: HK$29,423,000) are deferred
income on government grants, which are released to income
over actual expenditure used in research and development
activities.

RNEZEREER - HEMERR - E%IR
& REFTHRIRE2BRE 5 ME 2 RMEMNTRIEA
VAR FFERKAR o

RNEZEFIIZERAREENESREK
Ko BHEELZ —RIEEHR/I0E6E0X - AT
RREZAMREFRPEARAEBZENES
LS ES Pl S i

2010 2009
—s-%F  —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FH
357,207 462,324
42,571 36,472
4,556 2,876
16,023 14,495
420,357 516,167

R-B-—TE+-A=+—0 ENEBIEX
NEIELASEITEHE Z 5038 291,732,000 T (=
T T N4 : 88,866,00058 7T ) © B F@FKIEL IE
NEBARSBNNEEBEHE -

R-BE—ZEFE+-_A=+—H  HiENNKEA
NEIEBITE B R ZELEW A 27,349,000 7
T (=TT : 29,423,000/87T) © BiZZEW
NIZRE RS 2 ERAIFABEWRA -
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28. BANK BORROWINGS

Secured bank loans

At the end of the reporting period, the loans are denominated
in USD, which are not denominated in functional currency of
the respective group entities, carrying at LIBOR plus a spread
and payable within one year. Pursuant to the loan agreement,
the bank borrowings were secured by investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, land use rights and bank
deposits as disclosed in notes 16, 17, 18 and 26 respectively.

28. RITEE
2010 2009
—E-BE —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHTT
BIRMIRITER 640,335 271,123

RRERR - BEFRAEICAHE - MIEAEE
ARAZBERNIEERTTE - BIRMBIRITRIZE
FEMBEZRE  WR—FAXT - RIEE
ek D BIRAKMITELS 17 ~ 18 R 26 FT iR
& RITEEBERREYE WX BER
SR L R MERTTIE SEIR A o

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. R4
Number Share
of shares capital
BHEE [N
‘000 HK$'000
Fh FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each HRREEO.] Btz EEk
Authorised: JETE ¢
At 1 January 20009, RZEZENF—HA—H "
31 December 2009 and —EENF+=-A=+—H
31 December 2010 r—ZE—Z=F+—_HA=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
Issued: EE1T :
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZTNF—HA—H 1,517,490 151,749
Exercise of share options 1T{E B AR #E 11,216 1,122
At 31 December 2009 R-EBEZNF+_A=+—H 1,528,706 152,871
Exercise of share options 1T RE AR 40,919 4,091
At 31 December 2010 RZE—ZTF+_A=+—H 1,569,625 156,962

The shares which were issued during the year rank pari passu
with each other in all respects.

RERETZZERNERTEE AR HRE

2
Zs o
iy
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30. RESERVES

30. f#&#&

Properties revaluation reserve VI E R E
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EThEF
HK$'000 HK$/000
FET T
At 1 January Rn—A—H 73,739 8,911
Surplus on transfer from land E AR T Es i R
use rights and property, L E S ES
plant and equipment to investment LB YEmMEE 2 B
properties at fair value - 86,437
Deferred tax liability on surplus on B PA R T i R
transfer from land use rights and Y% - EREEEREYHE
property, plant and equipment to MEERG EERIESE
investment properties at fair value - (21,609)
At 31 December ®n+—A=+—H 73,739 73,739
Investment revaluation reserve REEhf#E
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2009 RZZETNF—H—H
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments  RIEHERE 2 A FEEEF) 25,366
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal available-for-sale R Z=i828 7 HEREHERE
investments (25,366)
At 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 RZZBZENF+ZA=+—HEK
RZZE—ZFF+-_A=+—H =
Translation reserve BEFEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTEx FAT
At 1 January n—A—H 118,504 112,185
Exchange differences arising on translation #EZ 25| EHEENERER
to presentation currency 50,433 6,319
At 31 December Wt+-—A=1+—8~ 168,937 118,504
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

31.

W BB F B A F

On 13 November 2009, the Group acquired 60% of the
issued share capital of Goldsey Limited and its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Smartwireless Technology Limited, for
consideration of USD6,000,000. The subsidiaries acquired
are principally engaged in design and development of
mobile handset solutions in the PRC. This acquisition
has been accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition
was HK$28,321,000. The goodwill arising on acquisition
is attributable to the anticipated profitability of the mobile
handset solutions business of this group.

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the goodwill

RZBZNF+—A+=8  AEEREST
BERARMEZEHREMBARILRERE
ERBEERARDHTRAZ60%  KER
6,000,000 7T ° TN B AR 2R H
HEBBFRADRT 2R A% - AR
BRAWEEHEAR BRUBMELZHE
SR/ 28,321,000 7T  WEEE < EE B
RESAEEBRSHFRERASTREK 2 RHR

Mg °

RGMWBZ EEFRRELZHEMT

arising, are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Other receivables

Bank balances and cash
Other payables

Deferred tax liabilities

Non-controlling interests
Goodwill

Total consideration satisfied by:
Cash
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

Cash consideration paid
Bank balances and cash acquired

Acquiree’s
carrying amount
before combination Fair value
WA RSB adjustment Fair value
A ZBREE AFEAE A¥E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ExT FHET F#ET
M - BB K& 1,165 - 1,165
B EE 59 47,175 47,234
H b FEUFRIA 548 - 548
IRITHEBR RIS 9,781 - 9,781
HAth fES 5IE (24,790) = (24,790)
BEFHIEAE = (3,268) (3,268)
(13,237) 43,907 30,670
DR R R (12,268)
kS 28,321
BREZEZEARN

Re 46,723

WHEFTEE £ 2 IR 58 ¢
BEfIRERE 46,723
WhE 2 SR1TEEB RIS (9,781)

36,942
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31. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

31. WiEKHE AR (&)

32

The subsidiaries acquired contributed approximately
HK$10,839,000 to the Group’s revenue and HK$7,734,000
to the Group’s profit for the period between the date of
acquisition and 31 December 2009.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2009, total group revenue for the period would have been
HK$2,991,531,000, and profit for the period would have been
HK$129,739,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2009, nor is it intended to be a projection of future
results.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

32

WEZMBARESAEERAKBEZRAE"
ZZNF+ - A=+ B z2HRZKAE ML
10,839,000/ 7T + A3 ANKI7,734,000/8 7T °

WEER=—ETAF—A— A% AEER
ZHAM 2 A 42 %8 1 /5 2,991,531,000 % 7T
3% A 8l A& 129,739,000 7T © 2 & LHEH
HAZA  WHAEERZBEER T,
F—A—HEAMERSE 2 WA REEE
1= INFERREE 2 TRA -

RERER

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments under operating
leases in respect of office premises of approximately
HK$6,049,000 (2009: HK$4,705,000), in which
approximately HK$1,852,000 (2009: HK$1,621,000) were
capitalised in development cost.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years and
rentals are fixed for an average of two years.

E_EERF( AEMFEEEN)

REBEEZEBEA

AEERPAEZMEMBBRLEEREI N2 &
R & RIE4) 56,049,00008 T (—EENE :
4,705,000/ 7T) + HH 491,852,000 (=F
TN ¢ 1,621,000 7T ) B R FEK AR E AR
1t -

R|ERR - ARERBETARELLHEES
NZRRSERSFIRAE ZFHAMT

2010 2009
—e-®5 -TTNG
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
2,636 1,755
2,338 1,779
4,974 3,534

HEZ FOFHRERME - MEASEESM
& o
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

129

32. KEMERH (R

The Group as lessor

All of the properties held have committed tenants for the next
2-10 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

REEERHBEA

FBERB 2 MEABABEAAERK2E 105
HEH] -

MRIERR - REB A AR AT R RS

with tenants for the following future minimum lease EESKIBLAT :
payments:
2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within one year —FR 14,890 12,324
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EFERT(EREMEBREEN) 52,566 38,709
After five years AFE 10,118 10,668
77,574 61,701
33. COMMITMENTS 33. &iE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZZETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Expenditure contracted for but not ERNBERAGE MIEHRE
provided in the consolidated Bz -
financial statements in respect of:
— building construction — BT 18,934 4,838
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34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

34.

RIERIETE

35.

The Group operates a MPF Scheme under rules and regulations
of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in
Hong Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and
are charged to consolidated income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited contribution is
available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years as
at 31 December 2010 and 2009.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance with
the applicable regulations of the PRC, participate in a state-
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
specific percentage of their payroll costs to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and cost charged to the consolidated income
statement, which was set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statement, represents contribution payable to the
schemes by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
schemes.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

fa)

REBRBARGIMEABSTEENAEMBER
BIEBRY —HRESE - MBERBE/NE
BHAMARERE - HRREEELF
WE—B D LLEL - WRBARESFTEI 23
RET X NREGRE WK - REST S
ZEBEERAEBNEMEESFERE BB
MNEBZESRER o ERBESE S HERE -
AEBREEHFEEHEZBNESMAE - R=
T—ZTFER_TTNF+A=+—8 1E
R HERIE RN A S BN AR REE 2 FET

AR -

AEERPEZIMEARERTEZBERR
8l - 28RN ZKEIE BB LSRR

BAEE - MBARARTEKNANEEED
Lot R R AR MET B SR - REBFLR KGR
a2 E—BEREREEHRR -

RAFE - AL A B HRAERNGE K
BRMFZAA - BERAGEBRRM T
13 - RRAEERIFFBIRAIZIEE e R @
SIENR 2 HAREE -

BRESE

The Company had two share option schemes, including
pre-initial public offering share options scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Options”) and post-initial public offering share options
scheme (the “Post-IPO Options”). Both Pre-IPO Options and
Post-IPO Options were adopted on 30 May 2005. The major
terms and conditions of the two schemes are set out below:

(A) Pre-IPO Options
(i) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i)  The participants included directors of the
Company or its subsidiaries, senior management
and other employees of the Group.

RRREMEELRET S - BREBERAFHEER
BRET 8 ([ BRAHBERBEEE )
RARBERBIETS ([ ERARAEEREK
#EHE ) - BERARBENBIRETEIRERR
MEERERETEEN _ZTRFAA=1H
TRERA o FIERTEI 2 E2IEFBENT

(A) BERAMBEANBRETE
() BEHERSEERZE -

(iy ZEEBBEAQTAXENBLRE
T AREEREERASEZ HitE
8.

A
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

35. lBIRAERT 8 ()

(A)

(B)

Pre-IPO Options (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The maximum number of shares in respect
of which options might be granted under the
Pre-IPO Options shall not exceed 44,000,000
shares.

Any cancellation of options granted but not
exercised must be approved by the board of
directors. Any options cancelled cannot be
regranted.

Subject to the vesting period set out in page
135 of this report and the terms of the Pre-IPO
Options, an option may be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the period of 10 years
commencing on the date of grant.

No consideration is required to be paid by the
grantee for the grant of options.

The exercise price of an option is 60% of the offer
price in the Company’s initial public offering on
21 June 2005.

The life of the Pre-IPO Options shall be valid
and effective from 30 May 2005 to 14 June
2005, after which time no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Pre-IPO Options
shall remain in full force and effect in all other
respects.

Post-IPO Options

(i)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

The participants included any employee or
executive director and such other persons as the
board of directors may consider appropriate.

(A)

(B)

BRDRBERBRESS (F)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BRARBERBRET SR L
Z BB R R RO RS
A 83 44,000,000 f% ©

EREHE R ERTTE Z BAGHE
AREZERE o (EMEEHEEK
TR ESHRE -

RIBAIRE S 135 A PAE 2 5B H
RERAFREEAERETSZ 15
R ARATRERL AR+
HARIBERS 1T FE A -

AR N BEER TR S HEA
RE-

BRRRZITREARARN_ZEZ
HERAZ+—B#ETERARE
ENEREEEZ60% °

BRAFRBEERNBRESZFH

—EERERRA=THE-ZZE
HENATOAMEE R LR -
B ST & B — PR E
HEB R AR E AR AT 812 5
REMAEMTEDETREI R
e e

BRARBERBRENS

(i)

(ii)

BHR A2 EERMHE -

SEERREMREINTES
ANEBESRERRAEIEMA
4.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED) 35. g MR &l (&)

(B) Post-IPO Options (continued) (B)

(i) On 12 December 2008, a resolution to renew
the 10% general limit of the Post-IPO Options
was duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options might be granted under
the Post-IPO Options must not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at 12 December 2008,
i.e., 1,517,490,000 shares, and in any event the
total maximum number of shares which might be
issued or issuable upon exercise of all outstanding
options should not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time.
As at the date of this report, the total number of
share remaining available for issue under the
refreshed 10% general limit is 44,549,000 shares,
representing approximately 2.84% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

(iv)  Unless approved by shareholders of the Company
in general meeting in the manner prescribed in
the Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options
to any grantee if the acceptance of those options
would result in the total number of shares issued
and to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his
options during any 12 month period exceeding 1%
of the total shares then in issue.

(v)  The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must
be made within 5 business days from the date of
grant. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantee for the grant of options.

(vi)  The exercise price of an option must be the
highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the grant
date;

o the average closing price of the share for
the 5 trading days immediately preceding
the grant; and

o the nominal value of the share.

(vii)  The life of the Post-IPO Options was effective
until 29 May 2015, after which time no further
option will be granted but provisions of the Post-
IPO Options shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects.

BR
(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

NEBERBRETE (H)

R-ZENF+-_A+=-H AR
Gl b R D 2k il DN
BERBERENEZ10% —% L
BR - B01,517,490,000 f% ° 1R 1% &
RARBEEREBRETER TR
RIEBRERT S MR RO EE -
THRBER_ZEENF+=-A+=
HEZTRM 210% + mETTERT
B AT 2 AR B 24Tk Al
BT ReRNAE - ERET
BiBAARA IR ED TR
230% > RARE BE - BIEL
B 10% — % EBR A (31T 2 F
4 B 1 48 81 5 44,549,000 8% + 15
RARRE B AR F B BITRAD
2.84% o

BREXRAR R A S LA ETT R E
B S HEESN - i NS
B AT 1218 A BB A 1T RS
Rt (B IEE AT R ARITEAE
BefE) 2 AR A BT RAGEITR
DBERIBEE D ETRMDAH
1%+ BIEE S TEREEAKA
B AE(TRE AR -

B 2 B M B IR B B RT
TfAZERBAREL - ARABER
BRI RE -

BREZITEEKNERUT Z&S
=

o REHAMBROZWTHE :

e EEREAHAAERSH
Wiy 2 FIHWTHE : R

s  RiOpZEME-

BRAFBERBRE S
BEE-E-RFRAZ-TARRI
—HAX AR TEBROBK
# - BERARESRERETS
ZIEXFERRBEMTEIR TR
DR
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

35. lBIRAERT 8 ()

The following table disclose details of the options under
Pre-IPO Options, Post-IPO Options held by the grantee and
movements in such holdings:

TREBREARABEY

ARERRA

ZHBRZS R 2

RAREERBRER
P ERBRERBINE ZBRE

Reallocated Qutstanding
Brercise ~ Outstanding upon  Granted  Evercised Forfeted ~~ Outstanding Evercised Forfeited it
Categoryof Neme Evercisable price atllanuary  changeof during during during ~ at 1 January during during 31 December
participants of scheme Date of grant~ period per share 209  dectorate  theyear  theyear the year 210 the year the year 2010
R-ERNE R-§-3¢ R-%-%F
g -B-B RESME  AEE -5-8 T2A=1-8
S528 iHEE Ring k8 ke BFFR  4EE B REEGR  AEERN  HAGR  AEEGR  AERRM  HAGR
(Note) HiS (Notei) ~~ (Noteiv) (Notei) (Note.) (Notei)
() T i) () (ki) ) (i)
Directors
TengHenloon,  PrePOOptons 3052006 1420062950015 102 75000 (750000) NiA A A A /A A A
Reymond EAORREN  CRRIE  CRRNEMA-ER TER TR Hia TR TR TR TR
(Notey) EhErd  RATHR RRERACTAA
BER(i)
Zhang Jianping PrePOOptions 3052006 14200685201 102 1500000 1500000 1500000
AT EAORREN  CRRIE  CRRNEMA-ER
EhErd  RATHR RRERACTAA
PostiPOCptions 2832008 1542008273018 081 1600000 (236,000) 1364000 (564.000) - 800000
BROFERER  CERNE CERMARATERE
EhErd  ZATtAR SR NESACTHA
PostiPOCptons 392009 154201029009 079 10,000,000 10,000,000 (2500000) - 150000
BAOFRER  CRBAE R-REMATIAE
EhEy  AAZR 0 EAEMACA
Tang Rongrong PrePOOptions 3052006 142006:952005 102 464,000 464 000 (464.000)
ERE EAORREN  CRRIE  CRREMA-ER
EREfE IRt CR-RERACTAR
PostPOOptons 2832008 154 2009-273.2018 081 1600000 (300000) 1300000 (500,000) - 800000
EVE :?fﬂi@ﬁLﬁEE
ERER ATt R NEEAoiE
PostiPOCptons 392009 154201029009 079 3000000 3,000,000 3000000
BROFERER  CERME CEEERATERE
EhEd  AZR 0 EAEMACA
Chan Tat Wing, Pre-POOptions 3052006 14200685201 10 500000 500000 500000
Ritard EfOFREN  CEERE  ERERA-EE
Rk EREfE IRt CR-RERACTAR
PostPOCptions 2832008 1542008273018 081 1600000 1600000 1600000
= - ‘?fﬂﬁ@ﬂLﬁEi
ERER ATt R NEEACiE
PostPOCptons 392000 154201029009 079 3000000 3,000,000 3000000
EAOFRER  CRBAE R-REMATIAR
EhEd  AfZR 0 EAEMACH
84000 (7200000 16000000 (336,000) 2728000 (4028,000) - 18700000

133



134

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2010

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M IBIRERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-_ZT—ZE+-_A=1+—HIFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

35. BRERE (8)

Reallocated Qutstanding
Breise ~ Outstanding upon  Granted  Exercised Forfeited ~ Outstanding Evercised Forfited it
Category of Neme Evercisable price  atllanuary  changeof during during during ~ at 1 January during during 31 December
participants of scheme Date of grant~ period per share 009 diectoate  theyear  theyear the year 2010 the year the year 2010
itk H-g-3¢ #-8-3%
&k -f-B HEERE K -f-A t2Azt-R
SEERH iHER REER  fRE fikE KGR  HER RE REEOR  AEEXR  MARE  RERAR  AEEXR  RAGR
(ot HiS (Noiei) — (Nole) (Nte i) (Vo) (o)
(k) i ) W ) ki) (ki
Employees of Pre-POOptions 3052006 14.2006-29.5.2015 102 10708500 750000 - Q210000 (138,000 7,801,500 (43010000 (4330000 2972500
the Group BADEEEN -55RF CESNFRA-BR
A5EEE EfEtd  BA=TH —E-RERA-TAA
PostPOOptions 1252006 112007115016 3675 7,005000 - = - (BI79000 6437500 - (4700000 5%7500
ENNERER INF CBRtER-RE
BRiEE  RATZR CEERAT-A
Post-POOptions 13.11.2007 1420812112017 164 14290,000 = - - (14700000 12820000 (42500000 (13320000 7,238,000
ANMEEER —33tF CZENERA-RE
L e 3 s
1A
PostPOOptions 2832008 1542009732018 081 65,180,000 = - (84085000 (88255000 47946000  (13273000) (3%7,000) 30716000
ENOERER “ZENE SENEMATRRR
BEE A “E-)\E=RriR
ZT/\H
PostPOOptions 39009 154201029019 079 - - 91,200,000 - - 0L200000 (149770000 (3891500) 72331500
ER0FEER ZETRNE  _S-REQATRAR
L DV =z R S -5
Total 105,247500 - 107200000 (112155000  (12.299000) 183933000  (40919,000) (10,088500) 137,925,500
it
Bxercisable at the end
of the year 31,205500
RERTFIR
Weighted average exercise
prie (HKS) 1183 1020 079 0863 107 0964 0913 0938 0973
T REER)
Notes: et -
(i) In relation to each grantee of the options granted under the Pre- (0) MRBE R ARBEEAERET 2 B ERES

IPO Options, subject to the vesting period set out below and terms

of the Pre-IPO Options, an option may be exercised by the grantee

at any time during the period of 10 years commending on the date

of grant, 25% of the options will vest during the period from 1 April
2006 to 31 December 2006 and in each of the three calendar years

from 1 January 2007 to 31 December 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 12 May 2006

under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each of the

four calendar years from 1 January 2007.

BEARAME  RETXAHEz2EBHRE
RAFZEERBAREEGK - BRE B R
HI0FEMA - AR AR BERTREERE - B
BARR=ZETNFONA—BEZETF+=
A=+—HHAARB -2 LF-—A—HZE_
ZEENFT A=+ —BZZHBEFEFERR
25% Z FERRHE -

MIRBEERRRBEERBRIETER _TTNF
TAT-RERBEREZSEZEARATNS A
2R LFE-A-HENNEEFSFERERER
25% 2 FE R
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HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=+—HLFE

35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (conTINUED)

35. lBIRAERT 8 ()

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(continued)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 13 November
2007 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of the options will vest in each
of the four years from 1 April 2008.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 28 March 2008
under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of the four
year from 15 April 2009.

In relation to each grantee of the options granted on 3 September
2009 under Post-IPO Options, 25% of options will vest in each of
the four year from 15 April 2010.

On 3 September 2009, the Company granted 107,200,000 share
options respectively under Post-IPO Options to certain directors of
the Company and employees of the Group. No consideration was

received for the grant of the options.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 438,000 (2009:
1,386,000) options granted under the Pre-IPO Options and
9,650,500 (2009: 10,913,000) options granted under Post-IPO
Options were forfeited upon the resignation of employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, 4,855,000 (2009:
2,271,000) Pre-IPO options have exercised and 36,064,000
(2009: 8,944,500) Post-IPO options have exercised. The weighted
average share price on exercise dates and the weighted average
share price immediately before exercise dates are HK$2.066
(2009: HK$1.08) per share.

Mr Tsang Hen Loon, Raymond resigned on 31 March 2009.

Bret -

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(&)
RBBEERARAEERBERESFEN _ZTLF
T—AT=ZHERBREZBEZARAMS * B
—TT ) \FNA—BENNEAEFESFEESRS
25% 2 FEIRHE -

BRBEERRRBERBRETER _ZT)\F
AT\ BERBREZSZEARAME @ @
“ETNFMA+RHENNEEFEFSES
B 25% 2 FERRHE -

RBBEERRARAEERBERESEN_ZTNE
NAZHERBREZBEARAMNS - A=
T-ZFNATAARHNNEAFESFHERS
25% 2 FEIRHE -

RZZZEAFNAZR  ARADFIRBEERR
F 3% 5 1% BB AR REET 81 4% 1 107,200,000 17 B8 A% 1
FTARRETEERAREETES - KB 2B
P8 B Y EUEAIARAE ©

BHE_Z-—ZE+_A=1+—HALEE " BRE
BOR AR S AR AR M R 8 438,000 (=
TZANF ¢ 1,386,00017) BEAE - ZHIREERX
N E & B EI H 2 9,650,500 17 B A%
HE(ZZTAE : 10,913,00019 ) AE B BHER &
"

BE-_T—ZHF+-_A=+—BLEE" A
4,855,000 3 (ZZEZ L4 : 2,271,00019 ) B X
A EREREITEE - BH36,064,0001 (=
TTHE ¢ 8,944,50010) BIR AR E & REARE
1718 - RITIE R B2 T HRE R ERETER
ARl 2 pniEF IR E R EAR 2.066 E T (ZZEEN
£ :1.0887T) °

REEALR - FEAFS A=+ ARE -
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (coNTINUED)

35. BRERE (8)

Fair value of share options granted to employees determined
at the date of grant is expensed over the vesting period, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group’s share option
reserve. For the year ended 31 December 2010, an amount
of share option expense of approximately HK$16,566,000
(2009: HK$9,259,000) has been recognised with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the Group’s share
option reserve.

The fair values of Post-IPO Options granted on 3 September
2009 determined at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model was HK$44,993,000.

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair
values of share options:

Share price (Note i)

Exercise price

Expected life of options (Note ii)
Expected volatility (Note iii)
Expected dividend yield

Risk free rate

TIfE(E

SRS
SRR

The Black-Scholes option pricing model requires the input
of highly subjective assumptions, including the volatility of
share price. The changes in subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Notes:

(i) The share price represented the Company’s share price at the date
of grant of the respective Post-IPO Options.

(ii) The expected options life is 5 years from the date of grant for Post-
IPO Options granted on 3 September 2009 respectively.

(iii) The expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over three years immediately
before the date of grant for respective Post-IPO Options.

W (B (A1t i)

BRI TRRT B R (frat i)
TR bR (et i)

RELBHETRRERE ZBREZ ATE

ZEBHX Y WHRASE 2 EREEEER
R HE-_ZTTE+_A=+—HIF

ﬁ - BB E S H £ %849 16,566,000/ 7T (==

TN ¢ 9,259,000787T) B FHER © WIEASE
B 2 PR A TR AR E A2 o

RRfaOR -FRNBERECERABEERE
BRARBERBRET SN _FTNAFNA

= AR HAEBREN A TE - £9444,993,000
7BTT
B 2 D ERA TIRRETE

Post-IPO Options

granted on

3 September 2009
BRNBRRERBRETER
—EENFNAZ=H

HK$0.7978 7T
HK$0.79 78 7T
5 years 4
82.98%
3.49%

1.9%

BhR - FRNBREEEEARTERLSE
I%ﬂZTE"“ BREEERD - SRTERR
SPHEBREFENTEZME -

Bt -

0] BERENERAREERBRET S SR L BH
KRR Z Bt (B

() H-BEAEAAZ AR ERANEERSE
R 82 RIS R E A A R 2 B
s5E o

(i) SEEENESMMEDEAHEARRRERER
EERARZEERBREBSRXEBRHA A3
FZBRERELNEERE
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36.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36.

BEALRS

37.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and key executives which
is disclosed in note 11 is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the Group’s operating results,
responsibilities and performance of individuals and market
trends.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

37.

FEEEAB 2R
R B EERFETHAEZBMEHR

HMZ B ERKEEBAKEEERE - EAME
RZEERERBRTIGBERET -

BEMREE

The Company has a proposed offering and listing of
Taiwan Depositary Receipts on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation. Details of the offering and listing are disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 5 January 2011.

ARBERBECEFTERERNBBIERAN
£ BEREMHBRARA —F——F—

ARBRAMGTEE -
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 38. B AR 2= 1E

ARRLES

SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 R-E—EFER_TZANF+_A=+—BAXK
December 2010 and 2009 are as follows: RNAIZHBARIFELT :
Date and place of Issued and fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital held by the Company
registration registered capital AAAERATE/ ERER 2L
Name of subsidiary HmA /R EERAR Directly Indirectly Principal activities
WEAR AR RERS RA/2RER E# 3 IERH
2010 2009 2010 2009
TE-FF CEEIAE CE-3F CEEAE
SIM Technology Group (BVI) 13 October 2004 Ordinary shares 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited BV US$12233 REER
“EENETAT=A Lak12233 %
BRAES
Sunrise Electronic Industry 17 December 1999 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Samoa US$2,002 REER
REETTEARAR “NWNETZATER  ERR2002ET
REDHE
Shanghai Sunrise Simcom? 9 November 1993 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Manufacturing and sales of LCD
LEREZREET The PRC contributed capita inthe PRC
HEBRAA —hAZE+-ANA RMB200,000,000 EREEERIEERBERER
# HMRELER
AR 200,000,007
Shanghai Simcom? 5 December 2002 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of mobile
LERRA? The PRC contributed capital handset solutions and wireless
ZTECETZARA US$5,000,000 communication modules and
e AMRELER moderns in the PRC
5,000,000% 7 ERENFRARAEGB TR
KA RRERBNERR I
Suncom Logistics' 23 September 2003 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing,sales and
B! The PRC contributed capital marketing of the
3y ey 1S$400,000 Group’s products
i HRRELER and provides logistics services
400,000% T inthe PRC
REERE S HERERA
SR R
Simcom Intemational 2 October 2003 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited BYI US$1 RARR
i LRI
EBRAKS
Suncom International 12 January 2004 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited BYI US$1 RARHR
ZEENE-RT=A LERIET
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

38. B A F 2 #F1E (#)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of share capital/
incorporation/ share capital/ registered capital held by the Company
registration registered capital AATEBATE/ ERER2ILA
Name of subsidiary AL/ 2R ERTRER Directly Indirectly Principal activities
(b N=Ef REREZ RA/HRER E& B IEXH
2010 2009 2010 2009
TE-BF CERAE CE-3F CBEAF
SIM Technology HK Limited 21 April 2004 Ordinary share - - 100% 100%  Provision of administrative services
RABREAERAR Hong Kong HKS$1 in Hong Kong
“TIMERACT-B  EBRIER REAR{TIRE
&%
Shanghai Speedcomm! 16 November 2005 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development of
LARUE! The PRC contributed capital mabile handset
Z2EnET-ATA RMBT,500,000 solutions and wireless
i AR ELER communication module
AEH75000007T solutions in the PRC
R E R R R TR
FRRREGENER RS
Max Vision Limited 17 September 2003 Ordinary shares - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
AEERAR Hong Kong HKS$2 RABR
“EE-ENATLA Lakosn
&
Shanghai Max Vision' 8 December 2003 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Procurement, outsourcing,
s The PRC contributed capital sales and marketing of
“EE=E+-A)\A 15$200,000 the Group' s products and
# MR ESER provides logistics
200000%T services in the PRC
RAERE S HERERA
SEERRREMRS
Simcom Wireless' 31 October 2006 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Design and development
GRS The PRC contributed capital of wireless
ZE5NETAZT-H US$1,000,000 communication modules
] AR ELER and moderns in the PRC
1,000,000% 7 R R R R R
RREEHE
Shanghai SIM Technology 2 August 2006 Registered and - - 100% 100%  Investment holding of
Limited" The PRC contributed capital [and use right in the PRC
FABE(DE) BRAR! “2555/\AZR RMB40,000,000 RAELZ D RE RARR
Giléi A REAEA

AR 40,000,007
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

HE-—ZE-—TE+-_F=+—HItEE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

38. B AR 2715 (&)

Name of subsidiary

o) P

Shanghai Simcom Electronic
Limited!
FERETERAA

Sino Team Investments
Limited

Shanghai Basecom Limited
AEREREM(LE)
BRAA!

Shenyang SIM Technology
Limited?
R (15 BRAT?

Shenyang SIM Real Estate
Limited
FAEZ (15 ARAD'

Shenyang Simcom
Technology Limited®
(Formerly known as
“Shenyang SIM Simcom
Technology Limited”)

NERNFRRNEERAR:

Date and place of
incorporation/
registration
L/ R
RHRE

21 November 2006
The PRC

“EERET-A-t-R

HE

3 January 2007
Samoa
“ERHE-fZR
ERTHE

18 April 2007

The PRC
ZEEHENATI\A
mE

25 October 2007

The PRC
“PRLETAZTEA
lE]

8 November 2007

The PRC
“Z3+E+-FN\A
e

24 July 2008

The PRC
“FE\FLAZHEA
H

Issued and fully paid up
share capital/

registered capital
BRTRER
RA&/fEA

Registered and
contributed capital
1S$200,000

A RESER
200000% 7

Ordinary share
Uss!
ERR1ET

Registered and
contributed capital
US$200,000

A RESER
2000001

Registered and
contributed capital
US$10,000,000

AMRELER
10,000,000% 7

Registered and
contributed capital
US$20,000,000

M RESEA
20,000,000

Registered and
contributed capital
RMB30,000,000

A RESER
AR 30,000,0007C

Proportion of nominal value of share capital/
registered capital held by the Company
ALRERARE/ A2

Directly

E#
2010 2009
I2-3F ZERNE

Indirectly
i
2010 2009

ZE-5F ZEZIAE

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%
(Note)
(&)

100% 100%

Principal activities

IEER

Procurement, outsourcing,
sales and marketing of
the Group' s products and
provides logistics
services in the PRC
REERE M HEREEAR
SEER NIRRT
Investment holding
RERR

Design and development
of mobile handset
solutions and wireless
communication modules
and modems in the PRC
R SR R G TR
RPRRESEAAREES
Investment holding of
[and use right in the PRC
B DA KRR

Properties development
inthe PRC
EPERENR

Design and development
of mobile handset
solutions and wireless
communication modules
and modems in the PRC
R R R T TR
RPRRESEAAREES
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

38. B A F 2 #F1E (#)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Name of subsidiary HRRL/R EETRER
WEARAR AERLE Ra/ifEs
Shenzhen Simcom 28 August 2008 Registered and
Technology Limited The PRC contributed capital
MIFRRNRERAT ZEE\ENAZT/\R RMB5,000,000
HE A RESEA
ARE5,000,0007C
Simcom Holdings HK 22 September 2008 Ordinary share
Limited Hong Kong HK$L
RAREAERAR “EE\FAACTH LERIERL
&b
Speedcomm Holdings HK 22 September 2008 Ordinary share
Limited Hong Kong HK$1
BUEEREEARAR “EE\EAAZTZR  EER1ER
&b
Shanghai iLove Limited" 21 February 2009 Registered and
LEYSHESRIBERAT  ThePRC contributed capftal
ZEENECACTEA US$3,000,000
e A RESEA
3,000,000%7
Shanghai Xinkang Electronic 5 January 2009 Registered and
Technology Limitedt The PRC contributed capital
HEREFREARAR “TENE-ARA RMB20,000,000
e A RESER
AR¥ 200000007
Shenyang SIM Simcom 5 June 2009 Registered and
Trading Limited The PRC contributed capital
NMERAAREESERAT ZSENFAARA RMB2,000,000
Gile] R ELEA
AR 2,000,0007T
Goldsey Limited 31 January 2008 Ordinary shares
BtERAR Hong Kong HK$18,000,000
ZEEN\E-A=t-A  LBRIB000000ET

Bk

Proportion of nominal value of share capital/
registered capital held by the Company

ADAERAEE/RERZ A
Directly Indirectly
B B

2010 2009 2010 2009

ZB-FF ZERAE ZB-%F CEEANE

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 100% 100%

- - 60% 60%

Principal activities

IERH

Not yet commence
business

HAER

Investment holding

REER

Not yet commence
business

HAER

Investment holding

REER

Not yet commence
business

RIAES

Procurement, outstanding
sales and marketing of
the Group’s products and
provides logistics
services in the PRC
RAEHRE  SMe - BHERERAR
SEERRRERE
Investment holding

REER

141
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (conTINUED)

38. B AR 2715 (&)

Date and place of Issued and fully paid up
incorporation/ share capital/
registration registered capital
Name of subsidiary SRR/ R BRTRER
WRARER RHRE RA&/fEA
Smartwireless Technology 13 February 2007 Registered and
Limitec® The PRC contributed capital
TREAREMERRAR?  CTRtE-AT=H RMB20,500,000
Giléi A RESER
ARE 205000007
Shanghai Mobile Phone Public 21 December 2009 Registered and
Testing Platform Co., Lid* ~ The PRC contributed capital
FEFREFALRETE  ZEEASTCACT-H RMB20,000000
BRAA¢ ke AMRELER
AR 20,000,0007T
Shenyang Chenda Precision 15 November 2010 Registered and
Industry Co,, Lta* The PRC confributed capital
IERERTANERAR! Z5-3E+-ATEA RMB30,000,000
LG A RESER
AR 30,000,0007C
L Wholly foreign owned enterprises (“WFOE”) registered in the PRC.
2 Sino-foreign equity joint venture registered in the PRC.
8 Re-investment in WFOE registered in the PRC.
4 Domestic Company registered in the PRC.

Note: On 4 November 2010, the Group signed a sale and purchase
agreement with a related company, which is beneficially owned
by Mr. Wong Sun, the director of the Company, on disposing of
40% equity interest in Shenyang SIM Real Estate Limited for a
consideration of US$8 million (approximately HK$62,030,000).
The disposal has not been completed as at the date of this report.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Proportion of nominal value of share capital/
registered capital held by the Company

ANERAEE/ERER LA
Directly Indirectly Principal activities
E# B IBER
2010 2009 2010 2009
2-3F ZEBAE CB-%F CEEAE

Hiet

60% 60%  Design and development
of mobile handset
solutions in the PRC

R R SRS
FHEATR
87.5% 87.5%  Not yet commence
business

RAER

90% /A Not yet commence
MER business
HAEE

FEHEFEMZ I EBE R -
FEHEFEMzHIaERE -

FEHEFEM I EBEBREDRRE -
EHEFMzE2RERE -

R-Z—FF+—ANA  AREEBEREE
(AREES) BENBEAREHT BE B -
1A 8,000,000 3 7T ( #9462,030,000 % 7 ) H & 1%
RAEZ OLB) BRARM40% R HE - RAHRE
TIEBH - KHEFBRHARTTA

W AR A R A E AR AF E R E
i R A (R A BT E 5 o



RANREEERAR —FFFFH

Financial Summary

MG E

For the year ended 31 December 2010
HE-ZT-ZEHF+-A=1+—HLLFE

RESULTS
Revenue

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ES
LN

FRBEATE A
S HF

REREH

IR ALREL

RRFRR
SRR

BEHARE
BEE
#afk

ARABRR
fEfb s
FER R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+tZA=t-BLEE

143

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“ZTRF e 3 —TENF ZETNF —E-EZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THL THI THERT
3,418,864 2,896,996 2,988,617 2,983,532 4,043,031
391,568 256,623 171,937 148,622 266,804
(18,695) (15,908) (28,120) (15,002) (29,180)
372,873 240,715 143,817 133,620 237,624
372,873 240,715 143,817 128,975 233,349
- - - 4,645 4,275
372,873 240,715 143,817 133,620 237,624
As at 31 December
R+=—A=1+—H8
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
“ETAF CFRLF CTR\E . CEENE CE-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THL THL TET
1,833,913 1,955,211 1,932,259 2,647 445 3,151,322
(713,766) (710,210) (596,868) (1,102,976) (1,332,232)
1,120,147 1,245,001 1,335,391 1,544,469 1,819,090
1,120,147 1,245,001 1,335,391 1,526,986 1,791,065
- - - 17,483 28,025
1,120,147 1,245,001 1,335,391 1,544,469 1,819,090




144

SIM Technology Group Limited Annual Report 2010

Corporate Information

N R]E R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms YEUNG Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr WONG Cho Tung

Mr ZHANG Jianping

Mr WONG Hei, Simon

Ms TANG Rongrong

Mr CHAN Tat Wing, Richard

Independent
non-executive Directors

Mr LIU Hing Hung

Mr ZHUANG Xingfang

Mr XIE Linzhen

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr LIU Hing Hung (Chairman)
Mr ZHUANG Xingfang

Mr XIE Linzhen
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr ZHUANG Xingfang (Chairman)
Mr XIE Linzhen

Mr WONG Cho Tung
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms WONG Tik

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

LEGAL ADVISERS AS TO HONG
KONG LAWS

Leung & Lau
PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Bank of Communications

Shanghai Pudong Development
Bank

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 2908, 29th Floor,
248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Butterfield Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre

11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-16, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

WEBSITE ADDRESS

http://www.sim.com
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